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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
- STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors present their Strategic Report on ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2022, This includes an overview of the Company’s structure, strategic outlook including 2022 performance,
and principal risks and uncertainties.

INTRODUCTION

The principal activity of the Company, registered company number SC190287, is the supply of electricity and gas to
domestic and business customers throughout Great Britain (“GB”), including customer registration, billing and handling
enquiries in respect of these services. The Company is also responsibie for the associated metering activity, including the
smart meter installation programme, and managing its smart solutions activities which launched the UK's first
nationwide installation service for air source heat pumps, solar panels, batteries and electric vehicle ("EV”) charging in
2022. In a pioneering strategic move to support the UK's efforts to achieve 'net zero’ by 2050, the Company's Hydrogen
department was established in 2020 and is working with businesses to seek appropriate green hydrogen solutions.

The ultimate parent of the Company is Iberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrola"} which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange. The
immediate parent of the Company is Scottish Power Retail Holdings Limited ("SPRH"}. Scottish Power Limited (“SPL"} is
the United Kingdom {"UK”} holding company of the Scottish Power Limited Group [{“ScottishPower”} of which the
Company is a member. :

The Company is part of ScottishPower’s Energy Retait business {(“Energy Retail”), which is also known as the Customers’
business. During 2022, an average of 4.8 miilion gas and electricity customers were supplied by Energy Retail. At 31
December 2022, Energy Retail supplied 4.7 million gas and electricity customers.

Notwithstanding net liabilities, the Accounts are prepared on a going concern basis. Refer to Note 1B2 for further details.

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

Operating review

2022 Supply market conditions

Over the course of 2022, the future of energy in the UK became an issue of critical importance. Post-pandemic demand
increases, combined with supply constraints linked first to the pandemic and then to the war in Ukraine, caused global
wholesale gas prices to rocket and remain volatile throughout the year. The Company has operated in challenging
conditions as a result of unprecedented volatility and increased costs in wholesale energy markets. The Company
recognises the negative impact that the cost of living crisis is having on its customers and has played a leading role in
palicy debates with government and regulatory stakeholders on the measures required to mitigate the worst impacts of
high energy prices for domestic and non-domestic consumers and to ensure the energy suppher market can fully recover
its costs and operate on a more sustainable footing.

Furthermore, the unprecedented increase in wholesale costs experienced since mid-2021 has continued to have a
significant impact'on the supply market landscape. A significant number of suppliers falled during 2021 leaving .
substantial levels of mutualisation and industry levy costs to be recovered from the remaining suppliers {and ultimately
consumers) through the course of the current and future years. As a direct consequence of increased costs, there are
very few products available on the market and as such a significant proportion of consumers across the industry have
defaulted on to the standard variable tariff (“SVT”) price cap. This resuited in the Company purchasing energy at higher
market costs which were not recovered through the equivalent price cap period. These unrecovered costs will be
reclaimed through the price capin 2023. ‘

Government support schemes :

With continuing increases in energy prices presenting real challenges, protecting customers through this period has been
a key priority. Alongside the Company's actions to help manage customer payments and offer support, the measures
taken by the UK Government to support customers have been welcomed. The Company has worked hard to support the
delivary of a succession of government support schemes, which have included the Energy Bill Support Scheme {“EBSS”)
and the Energy Price Guarantee ("EPG") for domestic customers, and the Energy Bill Relief Scheme ("EBRS"} for non-
domestic customers.

On 8 September 2022, the UK Government announced the EPG scheme which is an initfal six-month intervention which
the UK Government states will ensure that a typical household in GB has energy bills that equate to an annualised cost of
£2,500, and a monthly average cost of £208 for the six months from 1 October 2022. This compares to The Office of Gas
and Efectricity Markets’ {“Ofgem”) price cap level which increased from £3,549 to £4,279 for a typical household
effective 1 January 2023 had it not been for this intervention. The EPG provides support to domestic consumers from the
UK Government, with suppliers being compensated for the cost of the EPG, and the Company has been working closely
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with the UK Government to implement this scheme as efficiently as possible. Customers on fixed-term tariffs are also
covered by the scheme with the level of support depending on the price of their tariff compared to the average £2,500
leve! for variable tariffs. On 17 November 2022, in the Autumn Statement, the Chancelior announced that the EPG will
continue from 1 April 2023 for a further year at an increased level of £3,000 for a typical household, although the 2023
Budget announcement delayed this increase until 1 July 2023. From 1 April 2023, the Ofgem price cap reduced from
£4,279 to £3,280 for a typical household. Ofgem’s announcement on 25 May 2023 further reduced the price cap to
£2,074 effective from 1 July 2023. This wilt bring the price cap below the level of EPG government support. The EPG will
remain in place to safeguard customers against the price cap reverting to amounts greater than £3,000. At 31 December
2022, £513.6 million of revenue had been recognised in the Income statement in relation to the EPG {refer to Note 14),
and £461.1 million had been received from the UK Government with £52.5 million expected to be received in 2023, Refer
to Note 7 and Note 2i{a) which details information on the accounting policy.

The UK Government also introduced the EBSS scheme which provides support to customers by giving a £400 credit to
domestic electricity. customers over a six-month pariod {October 2022 to March 2023; £66-£67 per month). This has
resulted in the Company providing £519.5 million in EBSS rebates to customers during Q4 2022. This includes an £8.8
million prepayment made in December 2022, which distributed timely support to vulherable customers over the New
Year holiday period. At 31 December 2022, there was an EBSS liability on the Statement of financial position of £174.1
million included within Note "12, and therefore a net EBSS fability of £165.3 million. This largely represents funds
received from the UK Government that as at 31 December were yet to be transferred to customers. Refer to accounting
policy at Note 20.

However, even with these interventions, wholesale prices are contributing to. energy bills well above historical levels
presenting those most vulnerable households with real financiat challenge. The Company considers it urgent that the UK
Government continues to support those customers most in need, and is therefore pleased with the extension to the EPG
announced in the Autumn Statement and Budget. The UK Government has also announced more targeted support for
subsets of households as the cost of living rises, including a £150 rebate for some Council Tax hands, and additional
support for customers in receipt of some benefits, including those with low Income, disabilities and pensioners. While
further support has been announced, the Company continues to believe more government assistance Is needed on an
enduring basis to ease the burden on households who need it most. As set out in the ‘Outlook for 2023 and beyond’
section of the Strategic Report, the Company will continue to engage with the UK Goverament and Ofgem through key
consultations regarding market reform and the fair recovery of the costs incurred over this volatile period.

Recognising the pressure on non-domestic customers, the UK Government intreduced a support scheme for such
customers, similar to the domestic EPG. Through the new EBRS scheme, which runs for a six-month period from 1
October 2022, the UK Government is providing a discount on energy prices for all nhon-domestic customers. This support
applies to fixed contracts agreed on or after 1 December 2021, as well as deemed, variable and flexible tariffs, applying
to energy usage from 1 October 2022 to 31 March 2023. At 31 December 2022, £77.9 million of revenue had been
recognised in the Income statement in relation to EBRS {refer to Note 14) and £17.2 million has been received from the
UK Government. This [eaves £60.7 million as a receivable from the UK Government at year end, included within Note 7
(refer to accounting policy at Note 2i{(a)). On 9 January 2023, the UK Government announced that the EBRS would be
replaced by a new Energy Bill Discount Scheme (“EBDS”) which will run from 1 April 2023 until 31 March 2024, but which
wil] offer a lower level of support compared to the EBRS.
The Company recognises the negative impact the cost of living crisis is.having on its customers, particularly over the
recent winter period, which is why the Company has continued to engage with the UK Government offering solutions

{such as EPG, EBSS and EBRS), backed by the industry, to support the UK economy, and so these interventions are a

welcome support for customers, Further information regarding the support the Company offers to customers is set out

in the ‘Energy customers’ section of the Strategic Report.

Company changes

fn 2022, the Company expanded Hs restructuring programme announced in 2021 to ensure that it can continue to
operate sustainably In these unprecedented chalienging market conditions, and in the future, with this programme
delivering a transformation of the business from 2022 and beyond. This has resulted in a transitory headcount reduction,
with a view to developing existing staff and conducting recruitment to support the restructuring in the coming years
(refer to Note 11). ‘
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In Q1 2022, a decision was made to exit the industrial and commermal (“1&C"} stipply market over a period through the
introduction of a number of targeted actions to maximise the value of this segment. This decision was made largely due
to the volatility experienced in this segment, particularly around balancing costs as a result of the unprecedented rise in
market prices and mutualisation costs from failed suppliers, and the resultant risk on existing tight margins across this
segment. All existing customers will continue to be serviced as normal until contracts naturally mature between now and
2025. This decision has had no material impact on the 2022 financial results.

Ofgem activity

In response to the widespread failure of energy suppliers, Ofgem has tightened the rules governing market entry for new
suppliers, and of the ongoing monitoring of existing suppliers, focused on operational capability and financial resilience.
This has included regular financial stress testing alongside general reporting requirements, and an ongoing programme of
market compliance reviews focused on supplier compliance of key operational processes,

As a result of its market compliance review activity, Ofgem commenced compliance or enforcement activity with afmost
all suppliers even where only minor weaknesses were identified. Ofgem ranked the Company as amongst the best
performing energy suppliers in its direct debit and vulnerability review categeries, with no material weaknesses for direct
debit and only minor weaknesses for vulnerability. For customers in payment difficulty, Ofgem noted appropriate
processes as being in place, but issued a Provisional Order in relation to agent adherence to company policy, which was
subsequently revoked in December 2022 with no further action against the Company due to Ofgem being satisfied that it
had taken action to address the weakness.

Customer debt

Despite the significant increase in revenues driven by the higher wholesale costs, measures have been taken to reduce
the impact on the Company’s debt book. These measures include the aforementioned support schemes introduced by
the UK Government (EBSS, EPG, EBRS and EBDS), which together offer significant protection to both domestic and non-
domestic customers from the rising cost of energy bills. This mitigates much of the bad debt risk that may otherwise have
been apparent from non-payment of bills. From an expected credit losses perspective, the key risk is the collection of
cash from the customer, as the funds to be received from the UK Goverhment are considered to carry significantly fower
risk. Even with UK Government support, the underlying tariffs are still higher year-on-year for the.average customer, and
as such, the operational focus remains on prompt cash collection and the retention of customers on secure payment
plans. On 18 April 2023, Ofgem published its new voluntary Code of Practice for the forced installations of prepayment
meters and the conditions suppliers will need to meet prior to recommencing such activity. While there is a route under
which such installations may now resume, the circumstances in which they are permitted have been narrowed. This may
limit the Company's ability to offer customers a good option to have more control over their energy costs and may also
have an adverse impact on future cash collection. The level of customer debt as a percentage of billing, is trending down
from 2021 and 2020 levels. This is driven by actions the Company has taken to engage with customers who are able to
pay but chose not to. Refer to the ‘Energy customers’ section of the Strategic Report for further details on how the
Company engages with and supports customers. Refer to the ‘Principal risks and uncertainties’ sect:on of the Strategic
Report for further detaiis on recoverability of the debt book,

Smart solutions, smart metering and hydrogen

The Company’s smart solutions operation is all about helping customers decarbonise their lives and serving customers at
a time when they need it most. The Company has a range of products and emergency services that customers can call
on, such as a national service for central heating or boiler breakdown, a plumbing leak, or a kitchen appliance
breakdown. The Company has long-term contracts with strategic partners who provide these services on its behalf. The
Company continues to work together with them focusing on the value and service being delivered for customers, closely
montitoring and learning from customers’ feedback.

The Company offers a range of charging solutions for customers with EVs be it at home, in the workplace or public
charging. The journey away from burning gas to heat homes is being helped with the Company’s electric heating
solutions, in particular air source heat pump design and Installation. The Company also helps customers and businesses
.generate their own green energy through its solar solutions, and with batterles, the energy they generate can be stored
for when it iS needed.

The Company continues to make significant efforts and investments to support its smart meter rollout which, in
conjunction with its app, provides customers with a useful way to monitor and manage energy consumption. Despite the
benefit a smart meter can provide, in 2022, the industry is behind its colleétive target.

.3
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The Hydrogen department is focussed on producing green hydrogen. Only green hydrogen wili support the UK's vision of
achieving the net zero target, and together with ScottishPower’s Renewables business (“Renewahles”) plans to deliver
these ambitions at scale. The Company has signed twenty partnerships with businesses across the UK to produce green
- hydrogen and has been engaging with the UK Government to support the latest projects.

Values in action

' During 2022, governments and Ofgem continued to focus strongly on the need for suppliers to deliver a positive
consumer experience'for all customer groups, recognising the need for suppliers to identify the needs of their customers,
especially those in vulnerable circumstances, with Ofgem Issuing a number of marketwide reviews of supplier
compliance, After the challenges facing consumers as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the impact of rising energy
prices and broader cost of fiving challenges, 2022 has seen a significant focus on this. The Company has taken action to
ensure delivery for customers in this challenging environment, This includes actions taken to support customers directly,
as well as supporting customers in accessing support from relevant third parties and influencing the UK Government to
implement support interventions. Refer to the ‘Energy customers’ section of the Strategic Report for further details.

2022 Performance

Revenue* ) Operating loss* .. Capital investment**

2022 2021 2022 2021 . 2022 2021

Financial key performance indicators ) £m £m £m £m £m £fm
SP Energy Retail 6,346.4 4,009.4 {323.1} {305.4) 39.4 103.7

*Revenue and Operating loss are presented on the income statement on page 23.
**Capital investment for 2022 is presented within Notes 3 and 4 on page 35.

The Company's revenue increased by £2,337.0 million to £6,346.4 million in 2022. This is predominantly due to an
increase in domestic revenues as a result of tariff increases driven by higher energy costs, partly offset by fower volumes
from milder weather. Non-domestic business revenues have also increased due to the higher cost of energy.

The Company’s operating loss has increased by £17.7 million to £323.1 million. Whilst revenues increased, so did
procurements {malinly due to higher energy costs but aiso higher network costs). As a result, gross margin was £101.7
miltion lower year on year. The unprecedented rise in energy costs in the latter part.of 2021 continued to influence
results in 2022. Negative impacts included: continued exposure to high energy costs due to variable renewable wind
generation; Inability to pass on energy costs due to deficiencies in the price cap mechanism; and higher balancing and
Balancing Services Use of System charges {“BSUoS”} costs. It is expected that a significant proportion of the losses
incurred in 2022 wili be recoverable in 2023 via changes to the price cap methodology. These changes include a move to.
a quarterly price cap update, and additional allowances for historic loss recovery. Operating costs and other taxes
decreased by £69.0 million primarily as a result of fower Energy Company Obligation ("ECO") scheme activity, lower staff
costs and an increase in fncome from company recharges to Other fberdrola Group companies. Bad debt costs also
decreased by £10.0 million.

Capital investment has decreased by £64.3 million primarily due to decreased customer contract acquisition costs. This
reflects the downturn in supply market competition folfowing the increase in energy costs.

Statement of financial position

Net liabilities of the Company increased by £306.6 million in the year to £488.4 million. This reflects the impact of the
statutory loss of £258.1 million and the impact of the adjustment to reserves in respect of the amendments to 1AS 37
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’ of £48.6

mitlion (refer to Note 1C{a}}.

Impact of energy market volatility

The unprecedented rise in energy costs in the latter part of 2021 continued through most of 2022, This commodity
market volatility resulted in significant year-on-year movements in the Statement of financial position. Current trade and
other receivables increased by £886.4 million in the year due to the impact of higher revenues on customer receivables,
additional receivables recognised in respect of the UK Government assistance schemes implemented during 2022 (refer
to Note 7} and greater loan receivables due from other |berdrola Group companies. Current trade and other payables
rose by £1,219.7 mitlion in the year. This was primarily due to the value of customer credits increasing as a result of
higher commodity costs flowing through to customer bills and a new payable being recognised in the year in respect of
the EBSS scheéme (refer to Note 12}. The value of customer credits is expected to reduce in the first half of 2023 with
seasonal demand peaks. : :




SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT continued

STRATEGIC QUTLOOK continued

Non-financial key performance indicators {"KPis") Notes 2022 2021
Volume supplied {GWh)* “{a) 38,199 43,742
Complaints handling : _ (b) ' 3rd 4th
Smart meters in portfolio . {c) 51.2% 41.3%
Customers (thousands) . (d}
- Electricity ' 2,862 2,757
- Gas . : 1,934 - 1,856
’ ' 4,796 4,613

*Gigawatt hours {("GWh")

{a) Decrease due to reduced customer demand resulting frem high energy costs and economic crisis throughout 2022.

{b} Based on the Citizens Advice Domestic Energy Suppliers’ Customer Service Report. Rankings reflect ScottishPower and therefore, the Company's,
position relative to the other ‘Big Seven’ energy companies. The Company has continued to invest in its customer service teams with a key focus
on improving timely management and reselution of complaints, coupied with an overall focus on service guality across aifl of its advisors.

(c}  Percentage of relevant customer base with a smart meter.
[d) Customer numbers are based on the average number of Meter Point Admmlstratlon Numbers for electricity customers and Meter Point

Reference Numbers for gas customers during the year to 31 December.

Outlook for 2023 and beyond

During 2022, there continued to be a strong focus on the default tariff cap methedology and on the financial resilience of
suppliers after the significant level of suppliers failing during the second half of 2021 and into 2022, with a number of
consultations being issued by Ofgem which will likely lead to changes into 2023 and beyond.

The new quarterly price cap methodology introduced in August 2022 will continue into 2023 alongside the additional
allowances introduced to recover supplier losses relating to historic ‘unexpected SVT’ and backwardation costs. Ofgem
has issued consultations on the methodology in a number of areas, most notably proposals relating to the
appropriateness of the current 1.9% earnings before interest and tax {“EBIT"} margin allowance, seeking views on the
inputs to the allowance including how it is implemented, and in relation to the bad debt allowance and operating costs
more generally, Ofgem has also extended the temporary measures to protect suppliers against further impacts in the
circumstances of increased switching due to falling wholesale prices via a Market Stabilisation Charge {"MSC”) paid by
the gaining supplier to the losing supplier, and a ban on acquisition-only tariffs (“BAT") to Nlarch 2024, Looking beyond
this, Cfgem are also considering implementing the BAT on an endurmg basis.

Longer-term, the future of the price cap will be influenced by the content of the Energy Bili published on 6 july 2022 by
-the UK Government, which proposed to enable extensions of the cap beyond 2023 without & replacement fongstop,
instead the relevant Secretary of State {“SoS”") will be able to seek parliamentary approval for extensions of one or two
years through secondary legislation. The July 2022 Energy Bifl also proposed to introduce an ECO buyout mechanism to
facilitate removing the smafl supplier threshold. The Energy Prices Act 2022 received royal assent on 25 October 2022
with provisions to enable the SoS to terminate the cap on notice and requiring Ofgem to take account of the impact on
public spending {having regard to information or guidance provided by the SoS) when setting the price cap level. The
Company continues to lobby and influence the UK Government and Ofgem regarding the need for suppliers to recover
efficiently incurred costs and be able to finance their businesses in a sustainable manner, and the need to protect the
most financiatly vulnerable consumersin a targeted manner via a social tariff, :

Ofgem published financial resilience proposals in late 2022 which would require suppliers to protect Renewable
Obligations payments, prepare significant additional annual reporting requirements around financial and operational
resilience, and require suppliers to hold sufficient capital requirement by the end of March 2025. At this point, Ofgem is
not requiring suppliers to protect customer credit balances and instead will rely on the proposed minimum capital and
additional reporting requirements, but with additional powers to require ringfencing of credits where a supplier’s
reporting breaches particular triggers. In April 2023, Ofgem published its decision to introduce protections for
Renewables Obligations payments from November 2023 for the 2023/24 scheme obligations, and for the new annual
reporting requirements to be in place by the end of March 2024. It has issued further consultation on [ts proposals
around minimum capital requirements and additional powers for the ringfencing of credits, however, the aim remains to
have requirements fully in piace by the end of March 2025..

The Company expects Ofgem to continue with its increased monitoring of supplier operationa'i processes and capabitity
into 2023 via its ongoing programme of market compliance reviews to ensure suppliers are compliant with all {icence
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conditions, inciuding revisiting market compliance reviews undertaken in 2022,

fn the years ahead, the Company’s smart solutions department plans to make solutions more accessible and increase
engagement through monitoring and optimisation services. Physical solutions such as EV charging, solar generation,
battery storage and renewable heating will be more accessible as the Company innovates to reduce costs and offer
financial solutions alongside partners.

As the cost of energy is in sharp focus for households and businesses, the Company will help customers engage with their
energy consumption through services such as its energy insight app and new monitoring and optimisation services that
will link in with low-carbon technologies and the grid. When the energy wholesale market conditions are right, the
Company will offer supporting tariffs that will help customers shift their consumption to periods of lower carbon
intensity and fower cost.

The Company has positioned itself as the leading voice in the development of a green hydrogen industry in the UK. On
the back of significant customer interest in the region, the Company is developing a 20 MW facility at its existing
Whitelee Windfarm, which is intended to produce green hydrogen in 2024, subject to planning consent. The Company
has also made significant progress in the North of Scotland Hydrogen Project located in the Cromarty region, which has
been developed to produce green hydrogen for the Highlands. The first phase of this project is a 29 MW electrolyser
which has multiple industrial offtakes and is intended to produce hydrogen in 2025. Following the public consultations
held in 2022, the Company Is aiming for the Cromarty project to progress with the local planning authority through 2023
allowing the project to progress towards its target for the Commercial Operational Date (“COD"} during 2025. These
production facilities will be amongst the very first commercial scale green hydrogen sites in the UK and will support the
growth of hydrogen economies across Scotland. : .

The Company aims to hold a share of the UK Government’s target of 10 GW of green hydrogen production by 2030. As
such; 2023 will see the Company develop several large sites to create a portfolio of hydrogen opportunities.

Financial instruments ) )
As at 31 December 2022 the Company's financlal Instruments include Trade and other receivables, Cash, Loans and

interest due from Iberdrola Group companies and Trade and other payables. The Company Is therefore exposed to credit
risk and treasury risk (comprising both liquidity and market risk} arising from these financial instruments. Throughout
2022, the Company was also exposed to energy market risk associated with fluctuations in the market price of efectricity

and gas.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its contractual obligations under a financial instrument or

customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The credit risk management strategy adopted for significant types of

financial asset are as follows:

s Exposure to credit risk in the supply of electricity and gas arises from the potential that customers default on their
involced payables. Both domestic and business customers’ creditworthiness is reviewed from a variety of internal
and external information sources including customer payment history and credit checks. Recognising the current
level of energy market disruption, including the ongoing cost of living crisis, and the forecast uncertainty in macro-
economic indicators, in line with IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (“IFRS 9"), a forward-looking provisioning
methodology has been utilised to ensure that external factors are appropriately mitigated. Details of the Company's
provisioning methodology and the significant estimation uncertainty associated with it are included in Note 2.

- »  Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by ScottishPower’s treasury department in
accordance with lhardrola’s cash investment procedure. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty by the Corporate Risk Management
department.

+ The Company provides fundmg in the form of interest-bearing on demand loans to other Iberdrola Group
companies. Credit risk from Iberdrola Group companies is considered to he low as the Company is part of the
tberdrola Group's centralised treasury function and no Group company has a credtt rating lower than BBB+ (in fine
with Standards & Poor's external credit ratings).
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Treasury risk )

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities and market risk is the risk of
loss that results from changes in market rates (e.g. interest rates). The Company's liquidity position and short-term
financing activities are integrated and aligned with both ScottishPower’s and Iberdrola’s. ScottishPower operates and .
manages & centralised cash management model within the UK, with liquidity being managed at a company level. The
Company's objective is to-retain sufficient liquid resources and facilities to cover anticipated cash flow requirements for a
period in excess of twelve months. Both liquidity and market risk are managed by ScottishPower's treasury department,
who are responsible for arranging banking facilities on behaif of the Company. The Company produces short-term rolling
cash flow requirements and if necessary, any required funding is obtained via credit facilities already in place.

Energy market risk

ScottishPowet's Fnergy Wholesale business {"Energy Wholesale") is responsible for managing exposure to the UK
wholesale electricity and gas markets for both the Company and ScottishPower's Renewables business {"Renewables”).
Energy Wholesale do this via trading strategies that utilise derivative financial instruments which ‘ock in’ energy prices
which are ultimately passed on to the Company. This approach has contributed to the Company's navigation of the
volatile energy markets, ‘

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

To deliver its strategy, ScottishPower and therefore the Company conducts business in a manner benefitting customers
through balancing cost and risk, while delivering shareholder value and protecting its performance and reputation by
prudently managing the risks inherent in the business, To maintain this strategic direction, ScottishPower develops and
implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all levels of the
organisation. Further details of ScottishPower’s risk management practices can be found in the most recent Annual
" Report and Accounts of SPL.

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Company, that may impact current and future operational and financial
performance and the management of these risks are described on pages 7 to 10.

. |RESPONSE = = -

Regulatory and political ‘
Compliance with regulatory obligations especially in thejPositive and transparent engagement with all appropriate
context of sudden changes of policy, or interventions outside|stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability and
established regulatory frameworks. political consensus is maintained, and public backing is
_|secured for the necessary investment in the UK energy
system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of
ad hoc intervention in markets.

Structural uncertainty resulting from unprecedented volatility|Positive and constructive engagement with key industry
in wholesale energy prices and regulatory market|stakeholders including both Ofgem and various government
interventions. ‘ departments regarding the requirement for suppliers to
recover all costs incurred for 2022, and the need to make
fundamental changes to the market to ensure efficient
suppliers can recover costs in the future, Engagement includes
responding to consultations, and proactively lobbying key
stakeholders providing evidence on the Company's costs and
preferred regulatory amendments.
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RISK -

Regulatory and political continued

Because of unprecedented high wholesale energy prices and
ongoing volatility, despite changes implemented by Ofgem to
the price cap methodology and temporary measures to
mitigate the impact of falling prices, there remains risks to
suppliers recovering the real cost of supplying and servicing
the customer, preventing the Company achieving a
reasonable profit margin. There also remains uncertainty over
what other measures the UK Government may take to protect
consumers and whether such measures will be funded
through the price cap mecharnism.

The potential for non-compliance with the UK Government’s
mandate to complete the rolfout of smart metering to
customers in accordance with prescribed timescales.

“|responsible for ensuring the rollout capability is secured to

Engaging with the UK_Govemmeﬁt and Ofgem to advocate for
a price cap that accurately reflects the cost of supplying
energy to customers, and the need to extend Ofgem’s
temporary Market Stabilisation Charge and Ban on Acquisition
only Tariffs measures.

Dedicated project team focused on ensuring adeguate
business processes and systems are developed. The team is

enable deployment of meters.

Global financial market volatility

Impacts arising from market and regulatory reactions to
evenis including the Ukraine war, as well as positive or
negative changes in the UK economy. This includes the
movement in the market price of electricity and gas.

Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate
stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability and
political consensus is maintained, and public backing is
secured for the necessary investrment in the UK energy system.
Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of ad hoc
intervention in markets, In addition to monitoring ongoing
developments, the Company has specific procedures in place
to manage these key market risks. The Company adheres to a
ScottishPower Treasury risk management policy {comprising
foreign currency, liquidity and interest rate risk} to hedge
financial risks. This is discussed further within the Financial
instruments section on page 6. The mitigation of energy
market risk is coordinated strategically by SottishPower via the
use of derivative financial instruments and collaterai taken out
largely by other ScottishPower companies to hedge volatility
of wholesale energy prices incurred by the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

RISK o0

i RES’.PONSE_-:--:_'-'1-'_"5:"-:'

Climate change )

The risk that the Company's strategy, investments or
operations have a significant impact on the environment and
Hon national and international targets to tackle climate change.

The impacts of cEiniate-change include the risks of transition
{regulatory, market and demand variations), physical risks
(increase in temperatures) and greater competition for
financial resources.

The Company's commitment to tackle climate change is
reflected in its strategy e.g. establishment of a smart solutions
department to facilitate the uptake of low-carbon
technologies, delivering the Company's ECO4 programme and
preparing for Great British Insulation Scheme (“GBIS”),
{formerly known as “ECO+") and the creation of its Hydrogen
department to seek green hydrogen solutions.

The potential impact from climate chémge factors on
operations is mitigated through consideration of temperature
and demand trends as part of demand forecasting employed
by the Company. Furthermore, the Company [s fully engaged
with the UK Government and Ofgem on regulatory policy
change In relation to climate change targets that may Impact
upan the Company,

Health and safety
A major health and safety incident in the course of operations
could impact staff, contractors, communities or the
environment.

The Company has certified management systems in place to
deliver activities as safely as possible. A ScottishPower Health

-1and Safety function also exists and provides specialist services

and support for the Company in relation to health and safety.
A comprehensive framework of health and safety policy and
procedures, alongside audit programmes is established, which
aims to ensure not only continuing legal compliance but also
to drive towards best practice in all fevels of health and safety
operations.

Cyber security

The Company operates within an environment where there is
the presence of sophisticated and opportunistic cyber security
threat actors motivated to ldentify and take advantage of
flaws and weaknesses in the Company's cyber security
defences. The Company, In alignment with UK Regulation,
takes the protection of its data and the provision of its
essential services very seriously. The Company, as part of
ScottishPower, continues to invest significantly in its people,
processes, and technologies to enhance its capabilities to
prevent, detect and respond to security threats.

The main risks are related to operational technology used to
manage the production, management and distribution of
energy, or physical safety systems (fire protection, CCTV,
alarm reception centres); information technology (“IT”} that
enables the Company to operate critical services; the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of key information
assets; and cyber security risks impacting reputation.

The Company continues to focus on its enterptise security
risks through enhanced ihternal governance, complemented
by the adoption of a three lines of defence model with clear
roles and responsibilities established across the ScottishPower
Group, and therefore the Company.

These risks are managed in accordance with the basic
principles defined in internal cyber security rules promoting
the safe handling of data, use of iT and communications
systems, use of operational technology systems and assets,
and other cyber assets, reinforcing detection, prevention,
defence, and response capabilities against possible attacks.

The Iberdrola Group has specific insurance against cyber risks,
under the terms allowed by the insurance market, which is
revised and updated periodically in view of the rapid

evolution and wide variety of cyber risks. '
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PRINCIPAL

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

RISK:

. |RESPONSE -

Cost of living crisis

Increased focus on affordability due to the cost of living crisis
creates a greater number of consumers at risk and a greater
burden on suppliers to service and support customers. The

The Company continues to deliver on improvement actions in
relation to wvulnerability and affordability. Engagement
continues with the UK Government, third parties and Ofgem,

on the challenges facing suppliers in supporting customers
during the ongoing cost of living crisis, and the need for more
targeted consumer protection for its most vulnerable
customers.

future level of support offered by the UK Government which
deliver benefits to customers struggling with their energy bills
may be lower.

Increase in the level of overdue debt, driven by the impact of
rising -bills, high cost of living and deterioration in the
“|economy, impacting on the level of debt write-off required.

There are measures in place across the Company to manage
the key drivers of overdue debt, assess and implement
remedial and preventative action, and to establish key metrics
to monitor progress in reducing debt fevels. Key measures
include monitoring cash collection as bills increase, prompt re-
assessment of customer payment terms, and support being
offered to customers as soon as possible to agree on
appropriate debt prevention measures, particulasly for
vulnerable customers.

Market position .
Impact of competition on the Company's market share and
profitability.

Constantly managing the operating cost base to ensure that
profitability is protected and focusing on growth through
organic and other acquisition opportunities,

ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The importance of engaging with stakeholders

The Company strongly believes that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders, especially employees, is
key to promoting its success and values. Meaningful engagement with stakeholder groups supports the ethos of section
172 of the Companies Act 2006 which states that directors should have regard to stakeholder interests when discharging
their duty to promote, in good faith, the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. Details of
how the Company, engages with Its stakeholders, and how these activities influence the Company's operations, are set
out below,

Key stakeholders
The Company, has five key stakeholder categories: employees; energy customers; government and regulators; suppliers
-and contractors; and community and environment.

Behind these stakeholders are many people, and institutions, organisations and groups. Al of them, with thelr decisions
and opinions, infilence the Company, and in turn, are also affected by the Company’s activities. In addition, these
stakeholders interact with each other, creating a universe of relationships that the Company needs to manage in order to
achieve a better understanding of its operating environment and to deliver a more sustainable performance across its
activities. :

Shareholders are important to the Company. The Company's relationship with its shareholders is governed by the
Company’s Articles of Association and provisions of the Governance and Sustainability System which apply to the
Company and ScottishPower, of which the Company is a member. As the Company is ultimately wholly-owned by
tberdrola, all ultimate shareholder management activities are carried out by lberdrola in accordance with its own
Shareholder Engagement Policy as published at www.iberdrola.com.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December, the Company had 932 employees, working across a range of roles. These employees make a real
difference in determining how successfully the Company operates. The creativity, innovation and individuality of the
Company’s employees enables the Company to build on its future capability to operate effectively in a competitive
market and continue to have aspirations which are challenging and rewarding. The Company respects and recognises the
_ importance of Individuality as part of its ongoing commitment to promoting a culture where individuality is celebrated.
The Company also understands that being a diverse business goes beyond having legally compliant policies and practices;
it includes a focus on creating an innovative, integrated organlsatlon where people fee! valued and Inspiring them to
perform at their best,

As part of ScottishPower, the Company's engagement with its employees is driven by the decisions, policies and
procedures in place at a ScottishPower level, The directors of the Company ensure that in applying these ScottishPower
decisions, policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company.

Details of the following areas in relation to employee engagement which apply fully to the Company are provided in the
most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL:
s employment regulation;
training;
employee feedback and consultation;
* inclusion and diversity;
+ rewards and benefits;
» health and safety; and
= employee health and wellbeing.

Modern Slavery Statement

The term ‘modern slavery’ covers both slavery and human trafficking. ScottishPower, and so the Company, is committed
to human and labour rights and to eliminating modern stavery that could in"any way be connected to its business. In
accordance with the Modern Stavery Act 2015, ScottishPower has produced its own Modern Slavery Statement, which is
subject to annual approval by the Board of Directors of SPL. This statement is published at www.scottishpower.com /
‘Sustainability’/ ‘Sustainable business’/'ScottishPower’s Modern Slavery Statement’.

ENERGY CUSTOMERS ‘

The Company provides energy and related services to millions of domestic and business customers. The Company’s
success depends on its ability to understand and meet the needs of its customers, and engagement is key to its success in
this rapidly changing environment. The Company seeks feedback in several ways including forums, market research and
product testing, as well as via complaints channels and surveys, ' '

Customer service

Delivering excellent customer service to customers continues to be the Company's key priority. The customer is at the
centre of everything the Company does and is its focus. The Company continually assesses its processes and customer
journeys and identifies and implements improvements to ensure it meets its expectations and those of its customers.
The Company is relentless in its pursuit to improve customer experience, ’

The Company continues to focus on delivering customer service through a number of digital channels as well as retaining
traditional telephone channels. Digital tools are the channel of choice amongst the Company’s customer base with
mobile apps now being the most frequently utilised self-service tool, alongside digital online web chats. In 2022, the
Company was recognised for its digital commitment by providing customers with a ‘best in class’ user experience across
its i0S and Android apps through the award of the eCommerce ‘App of the Year’. Web chats have seen a rapid growth in
2022 and greater use of automation. Continued investment supporting in-house digital development capabilities enabled
the rapid design and creation of multiple new customer centric processes ‘and refinements to meet the continued
demands of customers and help manage operational requirements. '

Offering increased flexibility around payments and digital communication methods allows the Company to respond
rapidly to evolving situations and meet the needs of customers. In addition to the growth and enhancements to key self-
service account tools, there has been a continued focus on leveraging the capabilities of smart meters to deliver
automated services and insights to help customers gain a better understanding of their energy usage and dlgltlse
processes such as smart prepayment top-ups and more granular consumption insights.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued
Customer suppaort

" A key issue in 2022 was the impact of the cost of living crisis including the increase in energy prlces in the UK. In
response, the UK Government launched various support schemes; further details of these schemes are included in the
‘Operating review’ section of the Strategic Report. The importance of these payments to customers and a general
concern around affordability has resulted in a significant increase in customers contacting the Company across all contact
channels and in particular those customers that are finandially and non-financially vulnerable.

Prior to the increase in energy costs, the Company already had a range of support measures in place for customers in

vulnerable circumstances, whether financial or non-financial {and recognising that there can quite often be an overlap

between the two}. These services include:

e arange of contact options for customers to use to get in touch with the Company;

¢ automatic routing of customer calls to specialist support teams to manage contacts from customers who the .
Corhpany identifies may need additional support to manage their account, based on account information the
Company holds {including those with prepayment meters);

+ support options offered under the Company’s Priority Services Register for those non-financially vulnerable

customers whao may find it more challenging to manage their energy account;

alternative payment options and tariffs for different customer circumstances;

flexible repayment schemes for those who have built up deb;

advice on how to reduce energy consumption through simple actions by the customer or via the ECO scheme;

signposting to third parties who can offer additional guidance and support;

signposting to the ScottishPower Hardship Fund and the Company’s Prepayment Voucher Scheme, and

¢  adedicated team of National Community Liaison Officers whose sole purpose is to provide in home support.

*® & & @

The Company has further reviewed its approach to ensure it is doing as much as it can to support customers struggling to

pay for their energy, and in 2022 implemented the following:

e Setting up, and continuing to increase, resources within a dedicated Affordability Team, consisting of specially
trained customer service agents, to provide customers either at risk of, or already experiencing, payment difficuity
with tailored information, tools and support at a time when they need it most.

e Strengthening links with key third party organisations to help inform and adapt the Company’s approach moving
forward. This includes a new partnership with StepChange, the UK's leading provider of free, independent debt.
advice. This partnership supports the Company in its signposting for customers to receive additional support and
the Company has also utilised StepChange in its tralmng of agents within its new Affordability Team.

The Company's focus is on prompting customers to engage with it as early as possible so that it can provide the support
they need, whether that be within the actions it can take itself, or in ensuring those customers who need bhroader
support than the Company can offer, have direct access to third parties who can provide it

The Company is also raising awareness of the measures customers can take to reduce the impact of increasing energy
costs, This includes arranging for a smart meter to be installed, which is the best way to track energy consumption by
showing a customer the cost of the energy they are using and ensures they only pay for the energy they use by providing
the Company with regular, automatic meter readings.

The Company further supports vulnerable customers with their energy bills through the Warm Home Discount Scheme
(“WHD"). Now in its twelfth year, the WHD is the UK Government's main policy for tackling fuel poverty. The scheme is
delivered by energy suppliers, principally to qualifying customers, by providing rebates on electricity accounts to help
when bills may be higher over the winter period. During scheme year eleven, which operated from 1 April 2021 to 31
March 2022, the Company spent £28.2 million providing assistance to 201,782 customers by applying a rebate of £140 to
their electricity account. .

In addition, £3.6 million of funding was awarded to eight third-party organisations to defiver industry Inltiative projects
to provide a range of assistance to domestic customers, The Company’s partners delivered energy efficiency advice,
energy efficient white goods, and measures to improve the energy efficiency of the property where they lived. Other
projects focused on further financial support providing fuel debt assistance and benefit entitlement checks.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

Energy efficiency

The delivery of energy efficiency measures continues to be an important responsml[:ty of the Company, and 2022 was
the ninth year of delivery of the UK Government’s ECO scheme, The ECO scheme is fundamental to improving the fabric
of British homes in the Company’s pursuit of achieving net zero and focuses on reducing heating costs for the most
vulnerable customers and improving the energy efficiency of properties. ’

The Company successfully delivered two of its sub-obligations for the ECO3 programme in early Q4 2021 and the delivery
of its overall obligation was completed in December 2021, three months ahead of the legislative deadline. The Company
continued with its ECO3 programme in 2022 with surplus delivery being carried over to ECO4. This ensured that the
households could receive the henefit of the measures as early as practicable and maintained activity for the Company’s
supply chain partners,

In July 2022, the ECO4 legislation came into effect and the obligation will run until March 2026. The focus of ECO4 is the
most vulnerable households in the least efficient homes {Energy Performance Certificates (“EPC"} Bands E, F and G) and
targets a whole house improvement project based on a fabric-first approach. This will see a drop in the number of
properties treated, however, the majority of those treated will be improved by a minimum of two EPC bands with
multiple measures delivered to each-home. The Company’s supply chain commenced delivery of ECO4 measures in
August 2022 but delivery is cautious while the supply chain and obligated suppliers adjust to the new reqwrements of
the obligation.

in December 2022, the UK Government launched and closed a consultation on a new government funded programme,
the GBIS. This new £1 billion three-year programme will look to deliver loft and: cavity wall insulation to hundreds of
thousands of the least enargy efficient homes in the lower Council Tax bands, as well as targeting the most vulnerable
homes across the country. Ofgem have not yet confirmed their timescales for consultation or publication of scheme
guidance, however the Company expect the Government to lay scheme legislation in the summer of 2023. The Company
will look to commence delivery of this programme as early as practicable to deliver support to homes as soon as possible.

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORS

Governments and regulators play a central role in shaping the energy sector. The Company engages with them directly
and through trade associations, responding to issues of concern and providing expertise to support policy development.
Through this engagement, the Company aims to contribute to the delivery of a UK energy system that functions in the
interests of customers now, and in the future, including achievement of the UK and Scottish Governments’ net zero

decarbonisation targets.

The Company has also worked closely with the UK Government and Ofgem to respond to the unprecedented increases in
wholesale energy costs following the war in Ukraine, making the case for additional government support for domestic
energy bills over winter 2022-23, rotably the EBSS and EPG for domestic customers, and the EBRS for non-domestic
customers. Simultaneously, the Company encouraged longer-term reforms (including changes made by Ofgem to the
retail price cap) to ensure the sustainabifity of the supply sector. (Refer to ‘Operating review’ and ‘Outlook for 2023 and
beyond’ sections of the Strategic Report for further details.) -

SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS-

As part of ScottishPower, the Company’s engagement with its suppliers and contractors is driven by the decisions,
policies and procedures in place at a ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company ensure that in applying these
ScottishPower decmons, policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company.

The Company aims to develop and maintain strong refationships across its supply base with a focus on health and safety,
quality, cost and sustainability. The Company expects its suppliers to operate to a high standard including working in an
ethical and sustainable manner, and utilises a range of policies that all suppliers must adhere to, including the
ScottishPower Code of Ethics. - ' :

[n 2022, the Company continued to increase its focus on the Environmental, Social and Governance {"ESG”} credentials
of its main suppliers using its supplier risk management systerm, Go Supply, which was introduced in 2021. This system

has provided significant additional insight into ESG factors of the Company’s supply chain. The Company also works

closely with those suppliers that have been identified as having weaker ESG traits. This supports their development

through improvement plans and guidance.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued :

Fngagement with the supply chain is always a critical activity for the Company but continues to become more important
as the Company adapts to the current geopolitical and macroeconomic challenges. The Company is experiencing cost
pressures due to high global commodity prices along with increasing labour costs. The Company has locked to support its
supply chain during these challenging times by working collaboratively on forecast;ng its requirements and has
“established customs brokerage services.

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company continually strives to be a trusted, respected and integrated part of the community, by operating with
integrity, transparency, and working closely within the community to build relationships. The Company is committed to
being a good neighbour throughout all of its operations to ensure the benefits are realised in local areas by helping to
create local employment and enabling improvements to local infrastructure and services.

The Company is committed to reducing its environmental footprint by: minimising energy consumption and use of
natural and man-made resources; Sourcing mater[al resources responsibly, clitting waste and encouraging re-use and
recycllng, and promoting smart solutions.

In 2021, the Company created a new department within smart solutions — Smart Cities. This team’s mission is to help
decarbonise at a community level, working mainly with local authorities but also with other community groups, such as
housing associations. Smart Cities can reach consumers where a private financial investment may be unachievable;
through local authorities and community groups they can access low-carbon technologies. In addition, by deploying at
scale, the Company can reduce the price per solution.

In addition to supporting customers, the Company also supports the charity sector, particularly its longstanding
relationship with Cancer Research UK. During this difficult period for charities, customers on the ‘Help Beat Cancer’
tariffs continue to make a vital contribution to the incredible work of Cancer Research UK. The Company has raised over
£35 million to date through a combination of sponsorship of events hke Stand Up to Cancer, sales of the ‘Help Beat
Cancer’ tariffs, and fundraising activities.

The Company engages regularly with the key industry stakeholders such as Ofgem, Citizens Advice and Ombudsman
Services, to keep them fully updated of its community actions.

Following the ban on involuntary installations of prepayment meters under warrant and Smart change of mode to
prepayment, the Company has signed up to Ofgem’s Code of Practice, which aims to strengthen protections for
customers in vulnerable situations.

The Company is one of the remaining suppliers that have National Community Liaison Officers (“CLOs"). Its CLOs focus on
supporting customers who have concerns over their energy consumption or billing to ensure clear understanding. They
also provide support for those struggling with their energy bills. This is done in the customer’s home. The Company's
CLOs also provide locational support to its business customers. : )

The Company’s Hydrogen department is continually working with businesses across the UK to help support their
strategic aims to decarbonise their operations. For two years, the Company has supported the Scottish Schools Hydrogen
Challenge with the purpose of educating young people about the importance of green hydrogen in tackling the climate
emergency. '

INNOVATION .

It is crucial that the Company, continues to innovate and drive forward towards a decarbonised smart energy future. By
championing innovative technologies, bringing down the costs of decarbonisation and ensuring that no communities ara
left behind on the road o net zero, the Company continues to lead by example in making sure clean, affordable energy is

available to all.

The Company continues to address the challenges of finding a sustainable and affordable solution for domestic heat,
having already launched a nationwide installation service for air source heat pumps, solar panels, batteries and EV

charging.
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INNOVATION continued

The Company has been developing a concept for an industry- Ieadmg home energy management system to solve the
problem of adoption of new smart home technologies, caused by their fack of control, insight and inter-operability. This
solution will create a modular hub including a customer access device within the home which will pravide real time home
consuimption data and optimise performance of smart devices. The trial of this solution will be undertaken in conjunction
with external software and hardware providers. The outcome will provide customers with a product that helps them
reduce their energy consumption as well as additional income opportunities through system balancing. The Company is
also exploring the potential of a brand-new customer-facing app to help customers reduce their consumption and make
positive impacts on their carbon footprint, whilst also saving money.

SECTION 172 STATEMENT _
Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with section 172 of the Companies

Act 2006

The Companles (Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulations 2018 requires the directors of ScottishPower Energy Retait Limited
“to give a statement which describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) of the
Companles Act 2006 when discharging their duty under that section.

The directors acknowiedge and understand their duties and respon5|bailt|es including that, under section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, a director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely
to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing 50 have regard (amongst
other matters) to:

{a} the likely consequences of any decision in the long-term;

{b) the interests of the company's employees;

{¢c) the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

{d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment; .

{e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

{f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

The delivery of the Company’s strategy requires the Company to conduct business in a manner benefitting customers
through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting the performance and reputation of the
Company by prudently managing risks inherent in the business. In carrying out this strategy, the directors’ dutfes under
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been considered.

The directors strongly believe that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders and employees is key to
promoting the success of the Company. Details of the key stakeholders of the Company, and how it engages with them
are as follows:

e Energy customers: details of how the Company engages with its customers are explained in the ‘Energy customers’
section of the Strategic Report, on page 11.

« Employees: details of how the Company engages with its employees are set out in the ‘Employees’ section of the .
Strategic Report, on page 11, During the year, the Company’s board of directors {“the Board”) had regard to the fact
that ScottishPower’s, and the Company's, success depended on its ablhty to understand and meet the needs of
customers, and that engagement was key. ‘

s Communities and the environment: details of how the Company engages with communities and considers the

environment are set out in the ‘Community and environment’ section of the Strategic Report, on page 14. During the
year, the Board noted that the Company was committed to promoting products and technologies such as the
installation of charging infrastructure for EVs as part of the transition to a fow-carbon future. '

« Suppliers and contractors: details of how the Company engages with its suppliers are set out in the ‘Suppliers and
contractors’ section of the Strategic Report, on page 13. During the year, the Board considered and made its
statements on the Hydrogen department’s pipeline of projects as reported in the prior year's Strategic Report,

+ Government and regulators: details of how the.COrhpany engages with governments and regulators are set out in
the ‘Government and regulators’ section of the Strategic Report, on page 13. During the year, the Board noted that
the Company was committed to supporting the energy market to evolve and most notably decarbonise and meet
the ambitions of net zero, and that it continued to engage with governments and Ofgem across a number of policy
areas to ensure the regulatory framework was fit for purpose and fair.

In addition, a statement in relation to the Company’s Interaction with its shareholders is described in the introduction to
the ‘Engaging with stakeholders’ section of the Strategic Report on page 10.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT continued
The directors, both individually and together as the Board consider that the decisions taken durmg the year ended 31
Decernber 2022 in discharging the function of the Board were in conformance with their duty under section 172 of the

Companies Act 2006.

The Board is assisted in considefing key stakeholders as part of the decision-making process by the inclusion of
stakeholder considerations in board papers as appropriate, and board papers are carefully reviewed and considered by
all directors.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

lom )

Valerie Sim
Director
8 lune 2023
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT '

The directors present their report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022.

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, required by the Companies Act 2006 to be included
in the Directors’ Report, within the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 16:

» information on financial risk management and policies;

s information regarding future developments of the Company’s business;

o information in relation to innovation activities; and

s information on employee regulations and policies.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING

The Company is exempt under section 20A of The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships
{Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 from the requirements to present disclosures concerning greenhouse gas
emissions, energy consumption and energy efficiency action as such disclosures relating to the SPL Group, of which the -
.Company is a patt, are presented in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of Scottish Power UK ple (“SPUK").

RESUILTS AND DIVIDEND _ _
The net loss for the year was £258.1 million {2021 £249.1 million}. No dividend was paid during the year (2021 £nil}.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year were as follows:
Valerie Sim

Andrew Ward

As at the date of this report, there have been no changes to the composition of the board of directors since year end. .

" DIRECTORS INDEMNITY
In terms of the Company's Articles of Association, a qualifying third-party indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of all the directors of the Company and has been in force during the financiat year.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}, including Financial Reporting Standard 104, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{“FRS 101").

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a '
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company arid of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

e assess the Company s ability to continue as a gomg concerr, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and

» use the going concern basis of accounting uniess they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the .
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have genéral responsibility for taking such steps as are
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS continued
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets -of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irreguiarities.

tinder applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparlng a Strategic Report and Directors’
Report that complies with that law and those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and fmanmai information relating to the
Company that is included on the ScottishPower website. ‘Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of the financlal statements differs from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the directors in office as at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:
‘& sofaras they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006, '

AUDITOR
KPMG LLP was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2023,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Voo

Valerie Sim
Director
8 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED

Opinion :

We have audited the financial statements of ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited {“the Company”} for the year ended 31
December 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in Note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss for the year
then ended; '

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework; and '

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (“15As (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern _

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they dao not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its

. ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going

concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company's business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period,

Our conclusions based on this work: :

o we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate; , g '

s we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is hot, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a
guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud {“fraud risk”} we assessed events or conditions that could indicate

an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures

included: .

e Enquiring of directors and internal audit and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company's high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal audit function, and the Company’s
channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

s . Reading Board meeting minutes. -

»  Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected refationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

" As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall

knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls,
in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias
in accounting estimates and judgements such as recognition of accrued income and valuation of billed debt.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED continued

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect continued

On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because, with the exception of the
accrued revenue, the Company’s revenues consist entirely of routine, non-complex transactions which are subject to
systematic processing and do not require significant judgements, ‘

We identified a fraud risk related to the accounting for the domestic ‘Energy Price Guarantee’ mechanism applicable to
the Company and the determination of the amounts payable to or receivable from the government in connection with-
this scheme.

We performéad procedures including

e identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparlng the identified entries
to supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior finance management and those posted to
unusual accounts, including -additional unexpected combinations associated with the energy retail discount
accounts. Testing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls related to quarterly
balance sheet reconciliations for the Energy Price Guarantee receivables balance, as well as performing tests of
details over the year end balance sheet reconciliation.

*  Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the flnanaal
statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the directors and others
management (as required by auditing standards) and discussed with the directors and other management the policies
and procedures regarding compliance with faws and regulations. As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks
involved gaining an understanding of the control environment including the entlty s procedures for. complying with
regulatory requirements,

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation {including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation tegislation,
and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statement items. ' '

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation or the loss of the Company’s license to operate. We identified the following areas as those most likely to
have such an effect: health and safety, data protection laws, anti-bribery, Ofgem regulations, employment law and
certain aspects of company legislation recognising the regulated nature of the Company's activities. Auditing standards
fimit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of
operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that
breach. ‘

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in
accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from
the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it.

in addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls, Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstateiment. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot
be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED continued

Strategic report and directors’ report 4
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on

our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial

statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

e in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are notin agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o . wehave not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities _

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 17 and 18, the directors are responsible for: the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
-whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate

the Compariy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

1 4 .
VAN .
Andrew Williamson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
319 St. Vincent Street
Glasgow
G2.5AS
8 June 2023
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Netes £m £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 3 115.2 178.9
Property, plant and equipment 4 141.6 151.2
Right-of-use assets 5 0.1 0.4
Deferred tax assets 6 16.5 -
Non-current trade and other receivables 7 9.2 199
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 282.6 . 3504
CURRENT ASSETS '
Inventories 8 257.4 1950.4
Current trade and other receivables 7 1,736.0 849.6
Current tax asset 64.5 61.6
Cash 7.2 7.3
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,065.1 1,108.9
TOTAL ASSETS: 2,347.7 1,459.3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Of shareholders of the parent {488.4) {181.8)
Share capital 9,10 55.4 55.4
Hedge reserve 10 - {0.1)
Retained losses 10 (543.8) . {237.1)
TOTAL EQUITY ‘ {a83.4) ~(181.8)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
" Non-current provisions 1 4.1 15.2
Non-current lease liabilities 5. - 0.1
Non-current trade and other payables 12 1.0 0.9
Non-current income tax liabilities 6.2 6.2
Deferred tax iabilities | 6 - 4.2
*TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 11.3 26.6
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current provisions 11 226.8 335.7
Bank borrowings and other current financial liabilities - 03
Loans and other borrowings 13 - 0.2
Derivative financial instruments - 0.1
Current lease liabilities 5 0.1 0.3
Current trade and other payables i2 2,497.9 1,278.2
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,824.8 1,614.5
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,836.1 1,641.1
TOTFAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,347.7 1,459.3

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf on 8 June 2023,

\f@w -
valerie Sim ’
Director

The accompanying Notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,




SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Notes £m £m

Revenue 14 6,346.4 4,609.4
Procurements (5,978.5) (3,541.8}
GROSS MARGIN 366.9 467.6
Net staff costs 15 (71.5) {90.3)
External services (391.2) (385.8)
Other operating results 49.1 26.4
Net operating costs " {413.6} (449.7)
Taxes other than income tax 16 (77.8) {110.7)
GROSS OPERATING LOSS (124.5) - (92.8)
Net expected credit losses on trade and other receivables {85.5} (95.5}
Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions 17 {113.1} {117.1)
"OPERATING LOSS {(323.1) {305.4)
Finance income 18 0.5 0.4
Finance costs 19 0.2} (0.4}
1.OSS BEFORE TAX (322.8) (305.4)
Income tax 20 64.7 56.3
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (258.1) (249.1}

Net loss for bath the current and prior years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of ScottishPower Energy Retail

Limited.

All resuits relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMI'fED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
~ for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
) Note £m £m
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR _ , (258.1) (249.1)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME T
Itemns that may be subsequently reclassified to the Income statement:
Cash flow hedges: :
Change in the value of cash flow hedges 10 0.1 (0.1}
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - -
01 (0.1}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ' ' 0.1 (0.1}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {258.0) (249.2)

Total comprehensive income for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of ScottishPower Energy Retail
Limited.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Retained

Share Hedge earnings
capital reserve -/ (tosses) Total
£m " fm £m - £m
At 1 January 2021 55.4 - 12.0 67.4
“Total comprehensive income for the year ' - {0.1) (249.1) . (249.2)
At 31 December 2021 55.4 {0.1) (237.1} {181.8)
Adjustments due to impact of IAS 37 amendments (refer to Note 1C(a}) ‘ - - (48.6} {48.6)
Adjusted balance at 1 fanuary 2022 55.4 (0.1 © (2857} {230.4)
Total comprehensive income for the year - T 01 {258.1} {258.0)
At 31 December 2022 . ) 55.4 - {543.8) {488.4}

The accompanying Notes 1 to 23 are an integral part of the Statement of comprehensive income and the Statement of
changes in equity for the year ended 31 Pecember 2022, :
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS .
31 December 2022

1  BASIS OF PREPARATION

A COMPANY INFOMATION

ScottishPower Energy Retall Limited, registered company number SCI190287, is a private company limited by shares, -
Incorporated in Scotland and its registered address is 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 SAD:

B 'BASIS OF PREPARATION

Bl BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

The Company is required by law to prepare Accounts and to deliver them to the Registrar of Companies. The Accounts
are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Policies set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts are presented in pounds
Sterling and are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand unless otherwise indicated. The Accounts are prepared on the
historicat cast basis apart from certaln financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
("FRS 101”). In preparing these financial statemnents, the Company has applied the recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements of international accounting standards ("JAS"} as adopted by the UK ("UK-adopted 1AS") in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 including newly effective IAS for the year ended 31
December 2022 {refer to Note 1C). In applying FRS 101, the Company has made amendments where necessary in order
to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where FRS 101 disclosure exemptions have been taken:

¢ certain disclosures regarding revenue;

¢ comparative period reconciliations for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment;
s disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly-oWne& subsidiaries of iherdrola, S.A,;

¢ disclosures in respect of capital management;

s theeffects of new, but not yet effective, IAS pronouncements;

o disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel; and

s the preparation of a Statement of cash flows and the related notes,

As the. consolidated financial statements of Iberdrola, S.A. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also
taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value
Measurement’ and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 ‘Financial [nstruments: Disclosures’. :

B2 GOING CONCERN
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for

the following reasons.

The principal activity of the Company is to undertake the retall sale of electricity and gas within the group headed by
Scottish Power UK plc {“the SPUK Group”). SPUK, the Company’s intermediate parent company, Is itself a subsidiary of
Iberdrola, S.A., the ultimate parent undertaking., The Company’s cash flows are therefore dependent on the
continuation, volume, and pricing of those operations and have been considered as part of the SPUK Group’s cash flow
forecasts, on which the directors of the SPUK Group have performed an assessment of reasonably possible downsides.

To meet its working capital requirements, the Company participates in a UK centralised treasury function operated by
the Company’s intermediate parent company SPL, the parent company of SPUK. At 31 December 2022, the Company
had a loan receivable of £570.1 miliion with SPL. ScottishPower's treasury function works closely with Iberdrola to
manage the Company's funding requirements. There has been no indication that these arrangements may change.

The directors have performed a going concern assessment which indicates that, in the case of reasonably possible
downsides, the Company will require additional funds, through funding from SPUK, to meet its liabilities as they fall due
for at least one year from the date of approval of these financial statements,

SPUK has indicated its intention to make available such funds as are needed by the Company, in the event this is
required. As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge
that there can be no certainty that this support will continue although at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its Habilities as
they fall due for at least one year from the date of approval of these financial statements and, therefore, have prepared’
the financial statements on a going concern hasis.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2022

1 - BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

C IMPACT OF NEW IAS

As noted on the previous page, these Accounts have been prepared In accordance with UK-adopted AS. In preparing
these Accolints, the Company has applied all relevant standards and interpretations that have been adopted by the UK as
of the date of approval of these Accounts and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2022,

For the year endad 31 December 2022, the Company has applied the following amendments for the first time:

Standard . ' Notes

« Amendments ta [AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous : (a)
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling & Contract' '

« Amendments to §FRS 3 ‘Business Combinations: Reference to the Conceptual Framework' {b}

« Amendments to 1AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use' : ‘ {b}

«+ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle {b}

{a) With effect from 1 January 2022, the Company has adopted the amendments to |AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’. Following the amendments, the costs to be considered to fulfit a contract when assessing if a
contract s onerous or not is defined as being both the incremental costs and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling a contract.
Upocn application of this amendment, certain contracts with retail customers defaulting on to the standard variable tariff were considered to be
onerous as the unavoidable costs of meeting the obtigations under the contracts exceed the aconomic benefits expected to be received from
them. As at 1 January 2022, a provision for £60,0 million, the refated current tax asset of £11.4 million and a reduction in retained earnings of
£48.6-mitlion were recognised to reflect this in line with the transitional provisions of this amendment, therefore, comparative information has
not been restated. This provision was fully utilised during the year to 31 December 2022 {refer to Note 11}.

(b} The application of these amendments has not had a matertal impact on the Company's accounting policies, financiat position or performance.

2 . JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES .

in determining and applying accounting poficies, judgement and estimation is often required in respect of items which
have a significant effect on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses recognised in the financial
statements. Management considers significant judgements and estimates to be those with a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year due to the
inherent uncertainty regarding estimates and assumptions. '

SIGNIEICANT JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE COMPANY’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Retail energy onerous contracts

The assessment of contracts to determine if they are onerous or not, is subject to a degree of judgement. The
assessment includes consideration of both the unavoidable costs of meeting the contract and the economic benefits
expected to be received under it. Judgement was applied to assess the future revenues, incremental costs {including the
cost of energy committed where relevant) and the expected customer fife {i.e. the contract period), While these
assumptions are believed to be appropriate, a change in these assumptions could materially impact the vaiue of the
onerous contract recorded within the next twelve months. (Refer to Note 2H). '

OTHER JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE COMPANY'S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consideration of climate change ' ‘

The impact of climate change, including the risk identified in the Strategic Report an page 9, of the financial stateinents
has heen considered, No materlal impact on the judgements and estimates made in the preparation of the financial
statermnents has been identified. This consideration focussed on the Company's going concern position, including the cash
flow forecasts prepared for the directors' assessment referred to in Note 1B2. Additionally, consideration has been given -
to any estimates over the lohger-term which should be disclosed to alfow for an understanding of the financial
statements. The Company has no estimates of this nature to disclose.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES IN APPLYING THE COMPANY’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expected credit losses {“ECLs”} on trade receivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified model to measure ECLs, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance, for all
customer receivables. The Company has adopted the practical expedient whereby it calculates the ECL 'on customer
receivables using a provision matrix. In line with previous years, with the exception of 1&C customers, the provision rates
are based upon the customers' payment plan, historical credit loss experience and, where possible, adjusted for forecast

information. To establish levels of ECLs for these customers, the recoverability of equivalent balances from the previous
three years have been reviewed. [n terms of assessing the loss allowance for I1&C customers, the ECL is based on external
credit scoring.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO TH_E ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2022 : '

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

There is a level of estimation uncertainty in determining the provision, recognising the current level of energy market
disruption, including the ongoing cast of living crisis, and the forecast uncertainty in macro-economic indicators. In line

with [FRS 9, a forward-looking loss allowance has also been included to ensure that external factors are appropriataly

mitigated. Given the Company's decision to exit the 1&C market, to mitigate any debt impacts of this decision, security

deposits are being requested for customers who have previously paid late. Additionally, maturing and late-paying

customers are being placed on deemed higher rates.

While the assumptions are befieved to be appropriate, a change in these assumptions could materially impact the value
of the ECLs recorded within the next twelve months. Refer to Note 2F1.2(d) for further information on the provisioning
methodology and Note 7{c) for sensitivity analysis.

Accrued ‘unbilled’ revenue

The Company operates in the GB energy industry, whase nature is such that revenue recognition is subject to a degree of
estimation. Revenue includes an estimate of the units supplied to customers between the date of their last meter
reading and the year end. This estimate is based on external data supplied by the electricity and gas market settlement
process and internal data relating to energy purchases where settlement data is not yet avaifable. While these
assumptions are believed to be appropriate, a change in these assumptions could materially impact the value of the
accrued revenue recorded within the next twelve months. Where volumes are yet to reach final settlement, a provision
is made against unbilled revenue recognised in respect of those volumes. The provision s determined by considering the
current unbilled position, historical trends, and any other known factors. The value assigned to these estimated volumes
is based on a weighted average price per unit derived from the billing systems. This methodology is consistent with prior
years and in line with prior years, settlement data received post year end was reviewed and supported the provisioning
level. Refer to Note 2l{a) for key assumptions used and Note 14(a) for sensitivity analysis relating to accrued revenue.

The value of gross unbitled revenue in the Statement of financial position is £1,263.7 million {2021 £655.6 million). The
increase in the year s as a result of higher tariffs reflecting increased energy costs, '

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES- '
The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the Company’s accounts are set out beiow:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS {COMPUTER SOFTWARE)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS {CUSTOMER CONTRACT COSTS)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LEASED ASSETS

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS '

RENEWABLE OBLIGATION CERTIFICATES {"ROCs")

ONEROUS CONTRACTS ’ .

REVENUE

PROCUREMENTS

OTHER OPERATING RESULTS

FOREIGN CURRENCIES :
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

TAXATION : ,

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT SCHEMES (ENERGY BILL SUPPORT SCHEME)

A INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE)

The costs of acquired computer software, such as licences, are capltalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire,
and bring to use, the specific software. Amortisation of acquired computer software is on a straight-line basis over their
operational lives, which ranges between four and eight years.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2022

"2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Costs directly attributable to the development of computer software programmes, that are expected to generate
economic benefits over a period in excess of one year, are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated operational lives. Costs include employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate
proportion of relevant overheads directly attributable to bringing the software into use. Amortisation of developed
computer software costs is over periods of up to eight years.

B INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CUSTOMER CONTRALT COSTS)

The Company capitalises the incremental costs of obtaining certain customer contracts, prmcspally sales commissions, if
they are expected to be recovered. These are recorded as a separate asset class within Intangible assets and amortised
on a systematic basis according to the average expected life of contracts with customers that are assoclated with such
costs. The amortisation period is between two and four years. The Company has elected to apply the amortisation period
to a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics as the Company expects that the effect on the financial statements
is not materially different from applying it to the individual contracts. '

C  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated operational
lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs and other directly attributable
costs. Reviews of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are undertaken
annually. Residual values are assessed based on prices prevailing at each reporting date. .

Land is not depreciated. The main depreciation periods used by the Company are as set out below:

Years
Smart meters and measuring devices 10
Other facilities ' 10
Other items of property, plant and equipment 4 -50

B LEASED ASSETS
- A contract is, or contains a lease If, at inception, the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to controf the use of
an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in 1FRS 16 ‘Leases’ (“IFRS 16"},

An identifled asset will be specified expicitly, or implicitly, in the contract, and will be physically distinct or represent
substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, the asset
is not identified.

A contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset if the customer has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use, and the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset. The customer has this right when they have the decision-making rights that are most relevant to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. Where this is predetermined, the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either they have the right to operate the asset or they designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purposes it wilt be used.

The Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and thus accounts for the lease and non-lease
components in a contract as a single lease component.

D1 LESSEE

As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date, measured initially at cost.
This comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset, or restore the underlying asset or the'site on which itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the
shorter of the useful life of the underlying asset and the iease term. The right-of-use asset is reduced by any impairment
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losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The Company presents Right-of-use assets within
Non-current assets in the Statement of financlal position and the deprecation charge is recorded within Depreciation,
amortisation and provisions in the Income statement. '

The lease liability recognised at the commencement date is measured initially at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Where the rates implicit in the leases cannot be readily determined, the liabiiities are
discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate, being the currency-specific interest rate that would be
incurred on a loan, with similar terms, to purchase a similar asset. The incremental borrowing rates will be updated
annuaily and applied to leases commencing in the subsequent year. Therefore, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments); variabie lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date; lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option; and penalties for early termination
of a [ease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to do so. ' ’ :

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments arising from a change in the index
or rate, or If the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
This change in the lease liability will result in a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset s zero.

The Company presents lease liabilities separately in the Statement of financial position; the discount on the liabilities
unwinds over the term of the [ease and is charged to Finance costs in the Income statement.

E IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGISLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and leased assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset (the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell} is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any}. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money, the risks specific to the asset and lease liabilities under IFRS 16.

An impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company astimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Any impairment is recognised in the Income statement in the period in
which it is identified. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a charige in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been recognised, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. ‘

F FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. '

F1  FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fl.1 CLASSIEFCATEON :
Financial assets are classified as being measured at amortised cost: The classification of financial assets depends on the

Company’s business model for managing them to generate cash flows.

The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. The business model of the Company does not depend on the intentions of management for an individual
instrument. Therefore, it is not an instrument-by-instrument classification approach but-determined from a higher level

of aggregation.
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A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

s itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cashflows; and

¢ its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the 'SPPI’ test.

Financial assets are only subsequently reclassified when the Company changes its business model for managing them.
Reclassifications are effective from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in busmess model. Such
reclassifications are expected to be infrequent.

F1.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

{a) Initial recognition and measurement

" All finandial assets, except for trade receivables which are initially recognised when they originate, are initiaily recognlsed
when the Company hecomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value with the exceptioh of trade receivables without a significant financing .
component which are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ (“IFRS 15").

{b} Subseguent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets classified as amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectlve interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by expected credit losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses,
and net credit losses are recognised In the Income statement. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recoghised in the
Income statement.

{c} Derecogniticn ‘

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when either the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering afl, or a portion of, the contractual cash flows.

{d) Impairment of financial assets

- {i) Measurement of ECis

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The Company has adopted the simplified ECL model for its
trade receivables and the general ECL model for all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,

In applying the simplified model, loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for, where
possible, forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment in which they operate {refer to
Note 2).

ECLs are calculated based upon a provision matrix approach that reflects the risk inherent in different payment plans, the
differences in collection rates hetween debt attributable to current or lost {final) customers and the greater challenge in
collecting ofder debt balances. For 1&C customers, the ECL is based on external credit scoring: The Company’s Credit Risk
and Corporate Risk teams remain vigilant in tracking any liquidity issues on existing customers to identify any pre-
emptive actions required, including putting collateral or letters of credit in place.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between.the cash flows due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and those the Company expects to receive}. ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset. '

ECLs for all other financiat assets are recognised using the general model which works as follows:

for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses resulting from default events that are considered possible within the shorter of the next twelve
months and the life of the financial asset {(a twelve-month ECL); and
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e for credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining fife of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default {a lifetime ECL).

As an exception to the general model, if the credit risk of a financial instrument is low at the reporting date, management

can measure impairment using a twelve-month ECL and so it does not have to assess whether a significant increase in

credit risk has occurred. For this operational simplification to apply, the financial instrument has to meet the following

requirements: '

s it has a low risk of default; ‘ :

s the borrower is considered, in the short-term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations; and

s _the lender expects, in the longer-term, that adverse changes in economic and business conditions might, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its obligations.

The Company considers financial assets to have tow credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment-grade’. The Company considers this to be BBB- or higher per rating agency
Standard & Poot’s. Therefore, all of the Company’s other financial assets are considered to have low credit risk at both
the beginning and end of the reporting period, '

The Company has different definitions of default {risk of non-payment} for different groups of customers and receivables.
For some groups It is based upon the number of days past due and for others it is when internal or external information
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amount in full {before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company). These varying definitions of default are inherent in the loss allowances
applied in both the simplified and general ECL models.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are ‘credit-impaired’.
This is the case when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Generally, receivables are credit impaired when payment is past the contractual payment
date. - ‘

F2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
F2.1 CLASSIFICATION : ' -
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost.

F2.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT
{a) Initial recognition and measurement _
Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributabie

transaction costs.

{b) Subseguent measurement and gains and losses :

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income statement. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in the Income statement.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiufn on acquisition and fees, or costs tha{ are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest charge is included as Finance costs in the Income
statement. ' ‘

(c) Deracognition
The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under that liability is discharged, cancelled or has
expired. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

" or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, the original liability is derecognised and a new liability

recognised. The difference in their respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Income statement.
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F2.3 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability, and reports the net amount, only when the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

F3 FAIR VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ‘

In those circumstances where IFRS 9 requires financial instruments to be recognised in the Statement of financiat
position at fair value, the Company’s valuation strategies utilise, as far as possible, quoted prices in an active trading
market. : .

G REMEWABLES OBLIGATION CERTIFICATES

The Company participates in the Renewables Obligation (“R0O”} scheme administered by Ofgem. As there are no specific
rules under IAS dealing with thelr treatment, the Company classifies ROCs as inventories because they are a direct input -
cost to the process of supplying customers, ROCs are recognised at their acquisition cost and charged to the Income
statement as the obligations arise, :

The Company recognises liabilities in respect of its oblfgations to deliver ROCs at the value at which they were initially
recorded on the Statement of financial position, Any estimated shortfall in the liabllity is calculated based on the refevant
buyout price at the reporting date. ROCs surrendered to meet the RO utilises the related provision and s a non-cash
movement. : :

H ONERQUS CONTRACTS ) ‘

An onerous contract is one in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relates directly to the contract. Until 31
December 2021, this was considered to be the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and a provision recognised for
any onerous contracts identified to the present value of the obligations under them. Following the implementation of
the Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilfing a Contract’ on 1 January 2022 {refer to Note 1C{a)), the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises both the
incremental costs of and also an allocation of other costs that directly relate to fulfilling that contract, The assessment of
contracts to determine if they are onerous or not, is subject to a degree of judgement.

In the prior year, certain contracts, in particular those with domestic retail customers defaulting on to the standard
variable tariff, were assessed to consider if the costs to supply these customers exceeded the price cap level. The net
cost of continuing with the contracts was considered after taking into account revenues directly related to the contracts.
~ Judgement was applied to assess the future revenues, incremental costs (including the cost of energy committed where
relevant) and the expected customer life {i.e. the contract period}. As at 31 December 2021, these contracts were not -
considered to be onerous thus no provision was recognised. However, upon application of the Amendment to IAS 37,
and taking into consideration both the incremental costs and other costs directly related to fulfilling these contracts,
these contracts were deemed to be onerous. Therefore, a £60.0 million provision was recognised at 1 January 2022,
which has been fully utilised in the current year. At 31 December 2022, these contracts are no longer considered onerous
as the economic benefits expected to be received from them now exceed the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contracts. This is partly due to the changes that have been made to the Ofgem price cap
mechanism and the government support schemes that have been put in place during 2022.

‘| REVENUE _
The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods of services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

(a) Supply of electricity and gas

The Company’s performance obligations are the supply of electricity and/or gas to customers. Both these performance
obligations are satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the Company’s
performance as it supplies electricity and gas. The Company has a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds
“directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance to date. Therefore, in line with IFRS 15, revenue is
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recognised in the amount to which the Company has a right to invaice based on the volume of units supplied durmg the
year and the tariff agreed with the. customer. Effective 1 October 2022, the Company is participating in the EPG and EBRS
schemes which are designed to support energy customers in GB through the current cost of living crisis. The EPG scheme
(which runs until 31 March 2024) requires suppliers to charge a reduced tariff to domestic customers. The EBRS scheme
{(which runs until 31 March 2023) requires suppliers to apply a discount to the bills of non-domestic customers.
Therefore, following the implementation of these schemes, the revenue recognised from 1 October 2022 {and for the
duration of these schemes) is, in line with IFRS 15, based on the volume of units supplied to customers and the reduced
or discounted tariff as determined by the scheme ruies.

The Company operates in the GB energy industry, whose nature is such that revenue recognition is.subject to a degree of -
estimation. Revenue includes an estimate of the units supplied to customers between the date of their last méter
reading and the year end. This estimate is based on external data supplied by the electricity and gas market settlement
process and internal data relating to energy purchases where settlement data is not yet available. Where volumes are
yet to reach final settlement, a provision is made agalnst unbilled revenue recognised In respect of those volumes, The
provision is determined by considering the current unbilled position, historical trends, and any other known factors such
as the current economic climate. The value assigned to these estimated volumes is based on a weighted average price'
per unit derived from the billing systems. This methodology is consistent with prior years.

Invoices are generally raised at monthly or quarterly intervals, which customers typically settle on the same basis
respectively, except for prepayment customers who pay in advance. Billed and unbilled revenues are recorded in
_receivables. Amounts in contract liabifities consist of direct debit customer payments that are in excess of the associated
units of energy delivered, and final customer credits. ' :

Government support will be received by the Company to fund the EPG and EBRS schemes Government grants are
assistance by government in the form’ of transfers of resources in return for past or future compliance with certain
conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Such grants are recognised in the Income statement on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs for which the grants are intended. to compensate are expensed;
where the income receivable is compensation for expenses or losses already incurred, the grant income is recognised in
the Income statement in the period in which it becomes receivable. Both schemes are considered to be a government
grant with the income received being recognised in line with the energy consumption by each eligible customer
throughout the scheme perieds. The income recognised in fine with [AS 20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance’ (“IAS 207) is recorded in Revenue — Revenue received from government support
schemes in the Income statement as the funding is support for lost customer revenue, There is no difference in the
timing of the recognition of this revenue under IAS 20 compared to under IFRS 15 had the schemes not be in place. As
the grant funding is paid in arrears, the amounts due from the UK Government will be accrued within Other receivables —
Receivables in respect of government support schemes on the Statement of financial position until paid.

(b) Other revenues

Other revenues, COMprises various revenue streams which are all individually immaterlal, including revenues in relation
to the Smart Solutions business. For each revenue stream, revenue is recognised based on the consideration specified in
the relevant contract with the customers, to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur in the future. As relevant for each revenue stream, and in line with the
performance obligations In each contract, the Company recognises revenue enther at a specific pomt in fime or over a
period of time based on when controi is transferred to the customer.

]  PROCUREMENTS
Procurements principally comprises the cost of electricity and gas purchased in relation to energy supply, and related
direct costs and services for the of use of the energy network. Costs are recorded on an accruals basis. '

K OTHER OPERATING RESULTS
Other operating results is principally comprised of recharges of company activities to other iberdrola Group companies.

L FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. At the year end,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
reporting date, with exchange gains and losses recognised in Finance income and costs in the Income statement. '
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M REFIREMENT BEMEFITS
ScottishPower operates two defined benefit schemes and one defined contribution retirement benefit scheme in the UK,

ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited is a participating company in these group arrangements, and the contributions for
the defined benefit schemes are based on pension costs across all the participating companies. The Company is unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the scheme administrators do
not calculate these separately for each of the various companies participating in the schemes and therefore treats these
schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes, The amount charged to the Income statement in respect of
pension costs is the contributions payable in the year. ‘

N TAXATION : :
Assets and Nabilities for current tax are calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted, or substantively enacted,

at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable, or recoverable, on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits {temporary differences) and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liahilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are-recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is expected to be settled, or the asset realised, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged to the Income statement, except where it relates to
items charged or credited to equity {via the Statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in equity and is shown in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it
is recognised directly in equity or shown in the Statement of comprehensive income.

O GOVERNMENT SUPPORT SCHEMES (ENERGY BHL SUPPORT SCHEME) o
The Company is participating in the EBSS which is designed to support energy customers in GB through the current cost
of living crisls, running alongside the EPG and EBRS schemes discussed at Note 2l{a). The EBSS was effective from 25
September 2022 and requires suppliers to provide £400 to domestic electricity customers between October 2022 and
- March 2023. The Company generally received funding from the UK Government in advance of the payments being made
to customers. The funds are recorded as Other payables — Payables in respect of government support schemes until the
customer payments are made. Income is recognised as Revenue - Revenue received from government support schemes
in the Income statement upon making the customer payment. In line with IFRS 15, the consideration payable to the
customer Is recorded as a reduction to Revenue, Where customer payments have been made in advance of the
government funding being received, the costs are recorded as prepaid scheme obligation costs. The Company is
restricted in. how it can use the cash received from the UK Government and held in a ring-fenced bank account in relation
to the EBSS. The restricted cash balance in relation to the government support schemes at 31 December 2022 equated to
£3.2 million. The restrictions do not change the nature of the assets, only the purpose for which they can be used, thus
the funds should be considerad as a component of Cash equivalents.
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Computer Customer
software contract
(Notes {a), (b)} costs Total
Year ended 31 December 2022 Mote £m fm | £m
Cost:
At 1 fanuary 2022 316.5 248.2 564.7
Additions ‘ _ o) 106 21.8 32.4
Disposals {0.7) {56.0} (56.7)
At 31 December 2022 326.4 214.0 540.4
Amortisation: _
At 1 january 2022 272.0 113.8 3858
Amortisation for the year 25.2 66.9 96.1
Disposals (0.7 {56.0} (56.7}
At 31 December 2022 300.5 124.7 425.2
Net book value:
At 31 December 2022 25.9 89.3 115.2
44.5 134.4 178.9

At 1 January 2022

{a) The cost of fully amartised computer software still In use at 31 December 2022 was £278.9 million (2021 £7.2 milkion). During 2022, the customer

relationship management system, with a cost of £214.0 million became fully amortised.

b} Inctuded In the net book value of computer software is £3.2 million (2021 £16.2 millicn) for an asset re

lating to system upgradés for smart

metering which has less than one year of amortisation remaining. In 2021, there was also £2.8 million relating to the customer relationship

management systern which had Jess than one year of remaining amortisation.

¢} Included within Computer software additions is £1.1 million {2021 £1.3 milliort) from internal development.

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{a} Movements in property, plant and equipment in use

Smart

Cther items of
meters and QOther property, piant
measufing facilities and equipment .
- devices {Mote (i)} {Mote (ii)} Totai
Year ended 31 December 2022 £m £m £m £m
Cost: )
At 1 Jancary 2022 14.2 197.0 24.1 235.3
Additions 0.2 T 64 0.4 7.0
Disposals {3.6) - {1.2) {4.8)
At 31 December 2022 : 10.8 203.4 233 237.5
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2022 ‘ 117 60.8 11.5 841
Charge for the year - ’ 1.0 14,7 0.9 16.6
Disposals ‘ o : {3.6) - {1.2) {4.8)
At 31 December 2022 ' . 9.1° 75.6 11.2 -95.9
Net book value:
At 31 December 2022 1.7 127.8 12.1 1416
At 1 January 2022 : 2.5 136.1 12.6 151.2

{iy  Other facilities comprises smart meter infrastructure assets.

(i} Other iterns of property, plant and eguipment principally comprises land and buildings, and IT equibment.

(i) The cost of fulty depreciated property, plant and equipment still In use at 31 December 2022 was £13.8 million {2021 £11.3 million).

(v} Inciuded within the cost of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2022 are assets in use not subject to depreciation, being land, of £0.2

million {2021 £0,2 million).

{b) Capital commitments . _

The Company had £2.0 million (2021 £0.8 million) of capital commitments at 31 December‘2022 expected to be settled

within ohe year in both the current and prior year.
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{a) Lessee

The Company leases buildings and vehicles. Information about leases for which the Company is a Iessee is presented
below.

{i) Nature of leases

Buildings

The Company leases buildings primarily for office space. The leases have terms of between 20 and 23 years Certain
leases have options to terminate subject to a notice period typically of up to one month.

Some leases of buildings contain extension options exerasab!e by the Company at the end of the non-canceltable
contract period or an agreed point before that date. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include extension options
in leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by
the [essors. At lease commencement, the Company will assess whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options and reassesses this if there is a significant event or change in circumstances W|th|n its control.

Vehicles
" The Company leases vehicles with lease terms of four years, primarily being pool vehicles to mobilise its operational

staff. Certaln agreements can be terminated without notice.

Other information
The Company has hot committed to any leases that have not yet commenced. The Company has no contracts containing

residual value guarantee, no leases subject to significant restnctlons or covenants and no sale and leaseback
transactions.

{ii) Right-of-use assets

. Buildings Vehicles Total
Year ended 31 December 2021 Note e £m £fm £m
Costt : : ' :
At 1 January 2021 . 0.3 0.6 . 0.9
Additions ' - 01 0.1
Adjustments for changes in liabilities (a) 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2021 ) . 0.4 0.7 1.1
Depreciation: i , . . .
At 1 January 2021 0.2 ‘ 0.2 : 0.4
Charge for the year . ' C 04 0.2 0.3
At 31 December 2021 . 03 Q.4 0.7
Net book value:
At 31 December 2021 0.1 03 0.4
-At 1 January 2021 0.1 0.4 0.5

Buildings Vehicles Total

Year ended 31 December 2022 - Note £m £m £m
Cost: ' o
At 1 January 2022 : : : . 04 0.7 1.1
Adjustments for changes in liabilities {a) 0.1 - 6.1 -
At 31 December 2022 : ' 0.5 0.7 1.2
Depreciation: ’
At 1 fanuary 2022 0.3 04 0.7
Charge for the year ' _ ' 0.2 0.2 0.4
At 31 December 2022 ' ‘ 0.5 0.6 1.1
Net book value: .
At 31 December 2022 ‘ - 0.1 0.1
At 1 January 2022 ' 0.1 0.3 0.4

(a) Adjustments for changes in Habllities are movements In'the right-of-use asset resulting from remeasurement of the assoclated lease liability to
reflect changes to the lease payments due to any reassessment or lease modifications.
{b} There are no right-of-use assets measured at revalued amounts.
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(ii} Lease liabilities

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of non-derivative lease liabilities, showing the undiscounted payments to
be made after the reporting date.

2022 2021

£m £m

Less than one year 0.1 0.3

One to five years - 0.1

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 0.1 0.4
Analysis of total lease liabilities

Non-current - 01

Current 0.1 0.3

Total 0.1 0.4

Details of ScottishPower’s, and therefore the Company’s, risk management strategy for liquidity risks inherent in its lease -
liability are described in the Financial instruments section of the Strategic Report. '

{iv) .Total cash outflow for leases

2022 2021
£m £m
Total cash outflow for leases (0.3} (0.4)
6 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax recognised in the Accounts is as follows:
Property, Cther
plant and Trading termpozary
equipment losses differences Total
) Notes £ra £m £m Em
At 1 January 2021 (5.6) - {0.4) (6.0}
Credit to the Income statement (a} 1.0 - 0.8 1.8
At 1 January 2022 {4.6) - 04 (4.2)
Cradit to the Income statement {b} 1.0 18.9 - 08 20.7
At 31 December 2022 {3.6) 18,9 1.2 16.5

{a) tegislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that will increase the UK Carporation Tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023. -
accordingly, the deferred tax balances at 1 January 2021 were increased by £0.5 million to reflect the rate that the temporary differences are
expected to reverse at.

(b) Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of income tax losses as it has been assessed that it is probable that these losses will be utilised
against future taxahle profits, which are expected to arise in future years. This includes deferred tax assets in respect of the past trading losses
given the expected improved profitability of the business.

(c) Deferred tax assets, recognised in respect of trading losses, are expected to be recovered within the next two years based .on the current forecast
profitability of the Company. The forecasts used in assessing deferred tax asset recoverability are consistent with those used for the Company’s
impairment and going cancern assessments. )

{d) At 31 December 2022, the Company had unutilised capital losses of £15.1 million (2021 £15.1 milliors}. No deferred tax asset was recognised in
either year due to the unpredictability of suitable future profit streams against which these losses may be utilised.
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7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2022 2021

Notes £m £m

Current receivables: }
Receivables due from Iberdrofa Group companies - trade 6.7 2.8
Receivables due from Iberdrofa Group companies - loans ) : Y 570.1 138.7
Recelvables due from Iberdrola Group compénies - other {b} 15.0 15.0
Receivables due from lberdrola Group companies - interest 0.2 -
Trade receivables and accrued income ) . {c) 995.6 665.9
Prepayments 1.1 1.3
Receivables in respect of government support schemes {d) 122.0 -
Other receivables ' W 25.3 25.9
{e) 1,736.0 849.6

Non-current receivables:

Trade recelvables and accrued income - 2.9
Prepayments - - 0.1
Other receivables 9.2 - 169
9,2 19.9

{a} Current loans due from lberdrola Group companies are receivable on demand with interest linked to the Bank of England base rate {“Base”).

(b} The Company utilises forms of collateral, externally and internally with ScottishPower companies, to manage its credit exposure in respect of the
provision of network services. All collateral posted i settled in cash. At 31 December 2022, the Cormpany posted cash collateral of £38.1 milflion
(2021 £32.2 million) and posted letters of credit of £15.7 million (2021 £25.8 million). '

{¢) Included within the gross carrying amount of trade receivablesis £1,134.9 million {2021 £783.1 million} that relates to billed receivables due from
energy supply customers. The loss allowance in relation to these bilted receivables is £261.7 million {2021 £202.6 millicn}. The actual fevel of
pilled receivables coliected may differ from the estimated levels.of recovery, which coutd impact operating profit positively or negatively. At 31
December 2022, the loss alowance for billed recelvables of £261.7 million (2021 £202.6 million) was supported by a projection based ona 36-
month cash collection perfarmance. Based on the weighted average expected loss rates, a 5% increase in the overall expected loss rate would
increase the loss allowance by £56.7 million {2021 £39.2 miilion). A 5% decrease would decrease the loss-allowance by £56.7 million (2021 £39.2
millioh). Given the three year average movemert in the Joss allowance percentage and recognising the ongoing risk in customers’ ability to pay
due to the cost of living crisis, a 5% loss allowance sensitivity is cansidered appropriate.

{d} At 31 December 2022, the Company had receivables due from the UK Government for £52.5 million and £60.7 million relating ta the EPG and
EBRS schemes respectively. This balance also includes £8.8 million of prepaid EBSS obligation costs relating to payments made to certain
customers in advance of the year end. ) : ‘

(e} The following table provides information about IFRS 15 contract baiances included within Trade and other receivables.

2022 2021
‘ £m £m
Receivables 973.7 650.8

£82.1 miflion (2021 £89.2 million) of impairment losses were recognised during the year on receivables arising from the Company’s contracts with
customers, :

.8 INVENTORIES .
2022 2021

. Notes £m . £m

ROCs , (@ 256.8 190.2
Other inventories ) 0.6 0.2
(b} 257.4 ' 190.4

{a) ROCs surrendered In the year are used to settle the provision for the Renewables Obligation. Refer to Note 2G and Note 11.
(b) inventories with a value of £426.6 million (2021 £428.4 million) were recognised as an expense in the year.

9 SHARE CAPITAL .
2022 2021

£m £m

Aliotted, calied up and fully paid shares; ‘
55,407,000 ordinary shares of £1 each {2021 55,407,000) 55.4 55.4

Holdets of these ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time; amounts on the capitalisation of profits and reserves; and
notice and attendance at general meetings of the Company, with every member entitled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll one vote for

every share held.
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10 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDER OF THE COMPANY

Retained

Hedge earnings

Share reserve / (losses}
capital [Note (&)} {Note (b)) Total
£m £m " fm £m
At 1 fanuary 2021 55.4 - 12.0 67.4
Loss for the year attributable to equity halder of the Company - - {249.1) (249.1)
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - {0.1) - - (0.1)
At 31 December 2021 554 {0.1) (237.1) (181.8)
Adjustments due to impact of IAS 37 amendments {refer to Note 1C{a)) ' - - {48.6} {48.6}
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2022 ) ' 55.4 {0.1} (285.7} {230.4)
Loss for the year attributable to equity holder of the Company - - {258.1} (258.1)
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2022 55.4 - [543.8) {(488.4)

(a)
(b)

The hedge reserve represents the balance of gains and losses on cash flow hedges {net of taxation) not yet transferred to income or the carrying

amount of a non-financial asset. )
Retained earnings/{losses} comprise the cumulative balance of profits and losses recognised In the financial statements as adjusted for

transactions with shareholders, principally dividends,

11 PROVISIONS
At Utilised At
1 January New during 31 December -
‘ ) . 2021 provisions year 2021
.Year ended 31 December 2021 ' Notes £m £m £m fm
Reorganisation and restructuring {a) 0.7 4.8 - (0.7} 4.8
Renewables Ohligation ’ by 291.9 458.7 (405.9) 344.7
Other _ (c) L 10 - 0.4 - 1.4
293.6 463.9 {405.6) 3509
Adjusted .
At Adjustrnent balance at Utilised Released At
31 December dueto 1 January New during during 31 December
2021 |1AS37 2022 provisions year year 2022
Year ended 31 December 2022 Notes £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Reorganisation and restructuring {a) 4.8 - 4.8 5.3 {5.8) {1.5) 2.8
Renewables Obligation ) {b) 3447 - 344,7 434,1 . {452,1) - T 3267
Onerous contracts d - 60.0 . 600 - {60.0) - -
Other {c)’ i4 - 1.4 - - - 1.4
3509 60.0 410.9 439.4 (517.9) (1.5} . 330.9
2022 2021
Analysis of total provisions £m £m
Non-current 4.1 15.2
Current 3268 335.7
330.9 3509

{a}

(o}

(c}

{d)

The opening 2021 provision refated to a restructuring programme launched in 2019. That provision was fully utilised in 2021. A further provision
was created in 2021 in respect of a new restructuring programme launched in that year. During 2022, this restructuring provision was increased
to reflect various factors impacting upon operational performance and overall future profitability of the Company. The majority of the provision
was utilised or released in the year. The remaining balance of this provision is expected to be utilised in 2023, .

The provision for Renewabtes Obligation at 31 December 2022 principally represents the value of ROCs for 2022 expected to be delivered in 2023
and 2024. The utilisation of £452.1 miflion in the year represents the ROCs surrendered to meet the annual RO. The provision is not discounted.
Refer to Note 2G for the accounting policy.

Other includes a £0.7 million (2021 £0.7 million) provision for interest in relation to an ongoing investigation into a tax dispute and includes a
provision for £0.5 million (2021 £0.4 million) in respect of legal fees. Both provisions are expected to be utilised in 2023. The remaining provisions
are not individually material to warrant separate disclosure and are expected to be utilised in 2023.

Amendments to 1AS 37 was effective for the Company from 1 January 2022, The Impact of these amendments at 1 January 2022 was the
recognition of a provision for £60.0 million, refating to onerous contracts, which was fully utilised by 31 December 2022 {refer to Note 1C{a)}. At
31 December 2022, these contracts are no longer onerous as the econarmic benefits expected to be received from them now exceed the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts. This is partly due to the changes that have taken place to the Ofgem price cap

mechanism.
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12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022

2021
Notes £m £m
Current trade and other payables:
Payables due to [berdrola Group companies - trade 1,548.0 915.6
Trade payahles 170.2 152.1
Other taxes and social security 112.3 62.6
Payments received on account 0.5 2.6
Capital payables and accruals 23.2 32.7
Payables in respect of government support schemes {a) 174.1 : -
Other payables (b} 469.6 1126
{c) 2,497.9 .1,278.2
Non-current other payables:
Other payables 1.0 0.9
{c) 1.0 0.9

(a)
(b)

This balance primarily refiects funds received from the UK Government in relation to the EBSS which have not yet been paid to custorners.

Other payables is primarily comprised of customer credits totalling £459.8 million {2021 £102.5 million). Customer credits have increased as a
result of higher commodity costs flowing through to customer bills. 1t also includes collateral. The Company utilises forms of external collateral to
manage its credit exposure in respect of business customer accounts. All collateral held is settled In cash. At 31 December 2022, the Company
held cash collateral of £3.9 mitlion (2021 £3.9 million) and letters of credit held of £5.3 million {2021 £4.2 millien). The remaining balance 15 not

individually material to warrant separate disclosure.

(¢} The following tahle provides information about IFRS 15 contract liabilities included within Trade and other payables,

Contract liabilites

2022 2021
£m £m
634.4 1625

Contract Habilities consists of direct-debit customer payments that are in excess of the assoclated units of energy delivered and final customer credits.

The amount of contract liabilities recognised as income in the year is £85.4 mitlion {2021 £58.2 million).

13 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2022 2021
instrument £m £m
Accrued interast due to Iberdrola Group companies - 0.2
Interest is linked to Base.

14 REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue
: 2022 2021
. Em fm
Supply of electricity 4,234.8 3,007.8
Supply of gas 1,511.8 995.1
Revenue received from government support schemes 591.5 -
Other ’ 8.3 6.5
6,346.4 4,009.4

(@

()

{c}

As explained in Note 2((a}, Revenue-from the supply of electricity and gas includes an estimate of the units supplied to customers between the date of their
last meter reading and the year end. The estimated value of energy dellvered to customers Is included within billed revenuse (where an estimated reading Is
included within an issued invoice) and unbilled revenue {where no invoice has been issued). Gross unbilled revenue Included within the Statement of
finandial position at 31 December 2022 amounts to £1,263.7 million (2021 £655.6 million). This is before applying customer credit balances of £1,124.7
rafllion (2021 £526.5 million), a £28.0 million (2021 £21.3 million) provision in respect of £CLs and a £20.9 million {2021 £30.2 million) provision in relation
to energy volumes which have still to reach final settlement. This results in a net unbflled position at 31 December 2022 of £90.1. million {2021 £77.6
rmillion), which refates primarily to energy delivered in the final months of the year.

Had actual consumption been 4.0% higher or lower than the estimate of units supplied (the average variance pased on recent historical anaiysis), this
would have resulted in revenue recognised for unbilled amounts being £51.4 mitlion higher and lower respectively. The value assigned to this volume
sensitivity is based on a weighted average price per unit derived from thae billing systems, Approximately 93% of unbilled revenue relates to the most recent
quarter where there is a higher level of estimation uncertainty.

Revenue received for the year ended 31 December-2022 in respect of the EPG and EBRS schemes {accounted for as government grants} was £513.6 million
and £77.9 million respectively, Revenue received in relation to the EBSS scheme (accounted for under IFRS 15) was £498.5 raillion offset by an equal
amount being the consideration paid to customers. .

All revenue is recognised over time and arises from operations within the UK.
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15 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
{a) Staff costs :

2022 - 2021

: Note £m £m

Wages and salaries 51.9 55.7
Social security costs 5.6 5.6
Pension and other costs ' ) 151 -30.3
Total staff costs 72.6 91.6
Less: capitalised staff costs (1.1} {1.3)
71.5 90.3

Charged to the Income statement
{iy Pension and other costs In 2022 include a credit of £0.5 million fara restructuring programme {2021 £11.2 million costs}.

{b) Employee numbers
The average numbers of empioyees (full and part-time} employed by the Company, including UK-bhased directors, were:

Average Average

] 2022 2021

Administrative staff 635 677
‘Operations 522 ‘587
Total 1,157 1,264

{c) Retirement benefits ' :
The Company's contributions payable in the year were £15.2 million {2021 £17.8 million). The Company contributes to

ScottishPower’s defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK and the contributfons payable in the year
reflect the contributions payable in respect of active participants in the group schemes who are employed by the
Company. Full detalls of these schemes are provided in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK, the
intermediate holding company and the sponsoring company of the retirement benefit schemes. As at 31 December
2022, the surplus in ScottishPower's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £240.0 million (2021 £192.2
million). The employer contribution rate for these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2022 was 52.9-53.4%.

16 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX

2022 ‘ 2021
£m £m
Other taxes 77.8 110.7
Other taxes mainly comprises obligations specific to the energy industry, principaily ECO and WHD.
17 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS
2022 2021
. £m £m
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge 16.6 15.4
Right-of-use asset depreciation charge 0.4 0.3
Intangible asset amortisation charge 96.1 ) 101.4
113.1 117.1
18 FINANCE INCOME
2022 2021
o £fm £m
Interest receivabie from iberdrola Group companies 0.4 0.2
Foreign exchange gains g1 0.2
0.5 : 0.4
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19 FINANCE COSTS

2022 2021
£m £m
Interest on amounts due to Iberdrola Group companies - 03
Foreign exchange losses : 0.2 0.1
0.2 04
20 INCOME TAX
2022 2021
£m £m
Current tax: )
UK Corporation Tax credit an losses for the year {46.4) (55.4)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 2.4 .9
Current tax for the year (44.0) (54.5)
Deferred tax: .
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (14.7) (2.5)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (2.6) 0.2
Impact of tax rate change on opening deferred tax balance - 0.5
Impact of tax rate change on current year charge (3.4) -
Deferred tax for the year {20.7) {1.8)
Income tax credit for the year (64.7) (56.3}

The tax credit on loss on ordinary activities for the year varied from the standard rate of UK Corporation Tax applicable to

the Company as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m

Corporation Tax at 19% (2021 19%} {61.3) (58.0}
Adjustments in respect of prior years {0.2) 1.1
Impact of tax rate change on opening deferred tax balance - 0.5
Impact of tax rate change on current year charge (3.4) 0.1
Non-deductible expanses and ather permanent differences 0.2 -
Income tax credit for the year {64.7) {56.3)

Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that will increase the UK Corporation Tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023
Accordingly, deferred tax balances at 1 January 2021 increased by £0.5 million reflecting the rate that the temporary differences are expected to

reverse at.

21 FINANCIAL COMMITMERNTS

2022
- 2028 and

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 thereafter . Total

. £m £m £m £m £m - £m £m

Contractual commitments 30.8 0.4 - - - - 31.2
2021

2027 and ‘

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026  thereafter Total

£fm fm £fm . £m £m £m £m

Contractual commitments 19.7 0.4 0.2 - - - 20.3
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Transactions and balances arising in the normal course of business (excluding wholly-owned subsidiaries of

Iberdroia, 5.A.}

2022 2021
Other Other
Iberdrola Iberdrola
Group Group
companies companies
£m £m
Types of transaction

Sales and rendering of services : 0.5 0.2
Purchases and receipt of services _ {468.8) {320.0)

Balances outstanding
Trade and other receivables ) . . 05 03
Trade and other payables {50.6) . {79.0}

The amounts outstanding are unsecurad and will be settled in cash, No guarantees have been given or received.

. (b} Directors' remuneration
The remuneration of the directors that provided qualifying services to the Company is shown below. As these directors
are remunerated for their work for the group headed by SPRH, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
specifically in respect of services to this company. Both (2021 both} of the directors who served during the year were

remunerated directly by the Company. :
‘ 2022 2021

£000 £000
Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services 559 630
Number of directors who exercised share options 2 2
Number of directors who received shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 2
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme 2 2

2022 2022
Highest paid director £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration 388 ‘ 441
Accrued pension benefit : 77 65

(i} The highast paid director received shares under a long-term incentive scheme during both years,
(i) The highest paid director exercised share options in both years. .

) !mmedlate and ultimate parent company
The immediate parent company is SPRH. Copies of the accounts of SPRH may be obtamed from its registered office at

320 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD.

“The directors regard Iberdrola, S5.A. {incorporated in Spain} as the ultimate parent company, which is also the parent
company of the largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated. The parent company of the smallest
group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is SPUK.

Copies of the consolidated accounts of [berdrola, S.A. may be obtained from Iberdrola, 5.A., at its registered office, Torre
Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the consolidated accounts of SPUK may be obtained from its
registered office, 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD. '

The Company has no other related undertakings in addition to the parent undertakings as disclosed above,

23 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

2022 2021
fm £m
Audit of the Annual accounts ) 0.6 0.5
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